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CHAIR ANDERSON: .. . (gavel). .. Good morning, everybody. Welcome to the Water
Resources Committee meeting of July 2nd . We're all back in the saddle after a long break
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from Budget and we do have a challenging agenda in front of us this morning. With us
this morning we have Vice-Chair Mike Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Good morning, Mike. Member Joe Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Good morning.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Member Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Good morning. Member Danny Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good morning.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Members, for being here. Also, from Staff, Water Director
Jeff Eng.
MR. ENG: Good morning.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Good morning. Corporation Counsel Ed Kushi, Jr. and from our Staff
we have Kim Willenbrink, Staff Analyst, and Clarita Balala, Staff Secretary. Thank you
all for being here this morning. And for those in the audience, thank you. We also have
some visitors from Oahu. Very pleased to have you with us today.
On the agenda just so people will know where we're going, we're going to have a brief
update from the Director on the status of the Pookela Well. I'm sure everybody's
anxious to know what's going on with that as we have been for about two years. Then
we're going to talk about a new bill called the water availability bill. This is WR-13.
Then under Water Supply Rules we're going to talk about drought policy and possibly
adopt what is currently in the Code. Then we're going to also have a brief update
regarding new sources that develop. . .of water for development, specifically an
agreement on a new Piiholo Well, and then just a brief discussion on the Water Use and
Development Plan.
So, Members, I'm going to open up with testimony. I'm going to allow everybody three
minutes to testify, a minute to conclude. If you have more than three minutes and you'd
like to stop at three and come back after everybody's testified, you can testify for six
minutes. And I think that's pretty much the ground rules. If you have a cell phone,
please turn it off.
Okay. So let's start with testimony. No objections, Members? Any questions on the
agenda?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. So we'll go forward with our testimony. The first person we have
on our agenda this morning is Mr. John Duey. He'll be followed by Mr. Victor
Pellegrino.

. .. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. DUEY: Good morning, Council Chair and the other illustrious Members of the Water
Resources Committee. Glad to see Mike back from his journey in the mainland. My
name is John V. Duey, landowner, tax paying resident oflao Valley. I will be addressing
Items WR-13 and 16. But first I wanted to say something. I attended a panel discussion
last week in Wailuku. It was titled "Water Crisis - Fact or Fiction". All I can say is
some fiction was expressed by couple of the senior members of the panel and that I won't
say more about that. It concerned the availability of water in Central Maui. I still
support WR-13 which is known in some places as "show me the water bill", as it did
back on December 7,2005, when it was first brought by then Councilmember Dain Kane.
At present time the cart is before the mule as it pertains to planning. Now the Planning
Commission and the Planning Department approves projects and the Water Department,
the Planning Director, has to go find the water. .. has to come up with the water. It seems
to me no developer would want to develop a project without a long-term source of water.
I'm sure that if they .. .I'm sure they wouldn't if Maui Electric couldn't provide power.
And the supply of water is surely a factor now. This is a good bill and I hope it passes.
As far as No. 16, I'm in favor of the County ofMaui acquiring the West Maui Watershed.
Water is a public trust and it should be in the control of the public, not a private entity. I
just read in Saturday's Maui News that the Mayor, talking about the Budget, the $7
million is still there for the purchase of the Watershed. Oh, and just one more thing in
case you forget it. All together now - don't forget storage. Thank you very much for
listening.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Duey. Any questions, Members? Seeing none.
Appreciate you being here, John. Mr. Pellegrino is followed by Wayne Bachman.
MR. PELLEGRINO: Good morning, the Honorable Michelle Anderson, Maui County Council
Water Resources Committee Chair, and Members of the Water Resources Committee.
Aloha, my name is Victor Pellegrino. I represent Hui 0 Na Wai Eha and my ohana,
owners of Noho'ana Farm, a kalo farm in Waikapu. Our ohana is actively involved in
restoring ancient loi kalo in Waikapu, and thus, I have a close ... we have a close interest
in issues concerning water, not only for our farm, but for Na Wai Eha and all of Maui
County islands and its residents.
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Thank you for envisioning Maui's present and future needs for water. With the passage
of WR-13, you will have designed and implemented an important leap forward for the
people of Maui County. We understand that you agree that water is a public trust, not a
commodity, and should be used wisely by all. No longer can we take for granted past
practices by large landholders, water companies, and developers in general. These past
practices that is, the land is scarce but exploit it, the water is scarce so exploit it, are
If we are to have growth, let it not occur
pragmatically unacceptable today.
simultaneously with the exploitation and ultimate destruction of our water resources.
We are asking you for your kokua and support ofWR-13. It will ensure the sustainability
of our precious water resources in a way that is reasonable, fair, and equitable. Boy, I
spelled that word wrong. Thus, you fall. . .I was a former English Professor, too, so I
apologize. Thank you all for allowing me to testify today. Thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: You didn't spell it wrong. You just pushed too hard on the "u". Thank
you, Mr. Pellegrino. Any questions? Seeing none.
MR. PELLEGRINO: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thanks for being here. Mr. Wayne Bachman, followed by Jonathan
Scheuer from OHA.
MR. BACHMAN: Good morning. My name is Wayne Bachman and good morning to the
Council Chair and to the Council Members and to the audience. I live in the Maui
Meadows area. I am a retired geologist with 20 years of background in the field of
geology and I'm not affiliated with any groups. I'm not aligned with any, any
organizations. I'm not a member of any community associations or affiliated with any
other groups of any sort. I'm here as an individual with a background in geology - plain
and simple.
I got involved in trying to understand a little bit more about additional water resources on
the island of Maui with an emphasis on understanding the resource availability in South
Maui in particular after attending a number of presentations by a diff. .. a number of
different groups with positions of a development using ... utilizing water resources that
were from my understanding as yet to be developed. So I've spent the last two months
on my own nickel flying around to Oahu getting in touch with my counterparts with the
USGS, the State Water Commission, talking to colleagues back on the mainland, and
water resource people in the States of Washington and also California to try and get a
better understanding of some of the things that I see coming forth here in the ensuing
months as we talk about water.
To sum up everything that I've gotten to at this ... at this point after a couple of months of
research I feel that it's extremely important for an item like WR-13 to be looked at very
carefully. We're at that point on the island where water needs to be looked at in
conjunction with development plans. We probably reached that point ten years ago but I
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think it's in the public forum now. We see it in the newspaper all the time. Water is so
important and as I attend these forums, these presentations, I hear promises made that
water will be available, water is not a problem, we've got our water. Water is a problem.
As a geologist I'm here to tell you water is a problem in South Maui, as well as on the
rest of the island, and it's time to have a WR-13 where we can sit back, take a breath,
and, and look at supplies. And the only way to look at water really is long term. This
20-year plan is just a wonderful idea. Water can be extracted short-term.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. BACHMAN: You can make it look pretty good, but in the long-term things can change
rapidly and you don't see the effects from extracting large quantities of water usually for
a year to two years down, down the ... down the road. So I would encourage everyone to
look at this amendment carefully as something that would really benefit all the people of
Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Bachman. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
Next testifier is Jonathan Likelike [sic] Scheuer from OHA, followed by Isaac Moriwake.
MR. SCHEUER: Aloha kakou. Aloha, Chair Anderson. Jonathan Likeke Scheuer for the
Office of Hawaiian Affairs. It's a pleasure to be here again with all of you, especially
given your incredible leadership that you're showing on various water issues. OHA
wants to reiterate - we've been here before you on this measure - strong support for
WR-13 and really give, give you guys great credit for the leadership that the previous
Council and Mayor and the current Council and Mayor are showing on water resources. I
guess what I want to sketch out for you about the importance of this bill is it's one part of
a suite of things that you're all doing to really try and guarantee Maui's water future.
And sort of from trying to go from like the largest to the smallest from mauka to makai, I
would say the seven critical things - the seven major areas that you guys are focusing on
- number one and most important is maintaining and asserting public control of public
trust assets. Making sure that the County has a say in how water, the most important
public trust asset, is managed.
The second thing that you're doing, I see you're doing various things on that, including
as Uncle John mentioned, possible acquisition. Number two is actually protecting and
managing watersheds and making sure that those watersheds will continue to provide
water for future generations in providing a long-term and reliable funding source for
watershed management.
The third issue that's part of this suite of issues is looking at stream restoration to make
sure that streams are flowing freely from mauka to makai and that they're recharging the
lao Aquifer and the other important acquifers ofMaui.
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The fourth item is, and it's also on your agenda later, really paying long ... extreme
attention to long-term management and planning of water resources by supporting the
Hawaii Water Plan and pushing for the updating of the Maui Water Use and
Development Plan.
The fifth matter is what's before you. It's not just having good long-term planning
documents but making sure that they're tying long-term water planning to land use
planning. That's a missing link that's ultimately critical and all of these items end up
interacting with each other.
The sixth item is what you often pay attention to - maintammg and improving
infrastructure, including planning for storage, if necessary, and making sure that you have
funding available to reo .. maintain and repair infrastructure.
And the final item is to focus on efficiency. I just want to highlight for you what makes
Maui County unique, not only in the State, but among counties in the nation, is most
counties focus usually only on maintaining infrastructure and perhaps on efficiency, but
you really need all of these things together to make sure that Maui County's water supply
is protected and enhanced for the long-term future of all ofMaui's residents-MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. SCHEUER: --for the benefit of the environment. So it's great. The only thing I would
conclude just by suggesting I notice the agenda item is prohibiting developments without
a long-term water supply, really you should rephrase this as enhancing the reliability that
developers have. They're going to have a much greater chance of getting their
development through if they know that there's water ahead of time and this is going to
actually increase the availability of housing, particularly affordable housing. Mahalo.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Scheuer. Any questions, Members? Seeing none.
Thank you very much for coming over. We appreciate it very much. Isaac Moriwake,
followed by Lucienne deNaie.
MR. MORIW AKE: Good morning, Chair Anderson, Vice-Chair Victorino, Members of the
Committee. My name is Isaac Moriwake. I'm an attorney with Earthjustice. I want to
thank you for this opportunity to testify and also thank you for our working relationship
with the County government in general, as well as this Council. We appreciate the
forward looking initiative that you ... that you've shown, particularly with regards to the
issue of water which is so critical to the future of this island. Thank you also for hearing
this important measure.
I'm testifying with regards to WR-13, which again, probably more appropriate if we
phrase it enhancing the water availability for development. This key measure integrates
water and land use planning as the previous testifier, Mr. Bachman, mentioned. It's a
long time coming and it follows the model of California law which is known as the
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"show me the water legislation". And experience with this law has shown that it hasn't
brought development to a grinding halt, but what it has done it has. . .it has not allowed
planners and developers simply to sweep the issue of water availability under the rug.
Water is a public trust, as you well know, and this measure is very critical so that it
ensures that water is treated truly as a public trust. It protects our precious water
resources - the precious water supply. It also protects the County in that the County will
not be left holding the bag after approving so many developments and approving so much
building and then trying to scramble to figure out how to provide the water to these
developments. And it also helps developers as previous testifiers mentioned so that
developers have the assurance and certainty of having some sort of water to, to supply
their development before that development goes forward.
So in sum, future generations really deserve no less than some ... than this measure, this
forward looking measure. It injects rationality, foresight, and diligence into the planning
process. It, it moves forward from the previous practice of basically sweeping problems
under the rug and putting our heads into the sand as far as water availability goes. And
that's all the public trust with regards to our water resources calls for. It just calls for that
diligence, it calls for that care and for that foresight, and for that reason Earthjustice
strongly supports this measure. Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Isaac. Members, any questions? We really appreciate your
coming over from Oahu for this and for your assistance. Members, also in the binder is
written testimony from Earthjustice on the same issue and I hope you get a chance to look
at it. It is signed by Isaac Moriwake but it's different testimony than he gave this
morning so it's worthy of your attention. Lucienne deNaie. Thank you.
MS. DENAIE: Good morning, Madam Chair. Good morning, Members of the . . . of the
Committee. Thank you for being here early on this Monday morning to hear this
important issue. My name is Lucienne deNaie. I'm testifying on behalf of Maui
Tomorrow. As many of you know we have kind of tracked and weighed in on water
issues here in Maui, well, shoots, for probably most of the 18 years that we've been in
existence. And we're joining the others to say how progressive this Council is in terms
of looking at water as part of a whole and that's what this bill is about today - the "show
me the water bill", Item 13. I also want to thank and acknowledge Councilmember Kane
and his staff for bringing this forward. They consulted with us when they were working
on that and we actually sent them the original California bill that this is somewhat
modeled after.
And I have to say that as a person that interacts with the public what I hear from the
public again and again, and I'm sure all you folks when you're campaigning hear it, is
that they want to see some form of accountability. In other words, they don't want
people promising things out of our communal bank account, which is the public trust
resources of our water that either. . .whether it's in our streams or underground, they
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don't want it promised away beyond the capacity to deliver. And that's exactly what this
bill attempts to address.
One of the things that's happened in California - this bill has been in effect over five
years, I believe, and I go back and forth to California and talk to friends there that are
working on various, you know, sustainability issues - and one of the things that it has
done is made most major developments far more conscious of how much water they use.
So they're aiming for water efficiency because they have to prove that they have that
source and so the least water that you have to deliver, the easier it is to prove that you
might have it. So that is a hidden benefit of this kind of thinking.
Also, I think that, you know, we see in every election that voters are asking for balance.
They really don't want new development to jeopardize water availability for existing
residents and users and I'm sure everyone of you has heard this when you're
campaigning. So this is a way to go back to your voters and say, yeah, we did something
about that. We want to make sure that the people who live here have good quality water
and are not constantly, you know, having to pinch back water because we've
over-promised to somebody else and we didn't realize it.
And the last thing, a bill like this really helps our decision makers. I've attended so many
Planning Commission meetings where projects are presented. Their water sources are
just sketched in and there's no accurate information about whether they have any water
source or not and the poor Planning Commission turns to Planning Staff. Planning Staff
doesn't have any more information because no one mandates that they have to. And
that's about it, and you know, there's not much of a discussion that can be had on the
viability of a project if you don't have information about whether it has water or not. So
they tend to just green light them assuming that the best will happen. Well, we've kind
of seen where that leads.
So, I hope that you folks pass this out of Committee today. I also think it will really help
us by looking at water in terms of who really can ensure availability. We should also
prioritize those who are receiving public water supplies and make sure it goes to our
highest needs which are housing for people that live here. Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Lucienne. Any questions, Members? Seeing none. Thank
you for being here, Lucienne. Lucienne is followed by Jocelyn Perreira, who will be
followed by Rosemary Robbins.
MS. PERREIRA: Good morning, Chair Anderson. Hello, Council Members. Thank you for
being here and working so diligently on all of our behalf. My name is Jocelyn Perreira.
I'm representing this morning the Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center network of seven
small towns within Maui County. We're here to, of course, thank you for your due
diligence and make a few inquiries and possibly a recommendation in the support of the
continued efforts to update water rules, the development of new water sources, and
comprehensive water use and development plan.
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Our concern lies with Item No. WR-13, prohibiting development projects without a
long-term reliable source of water, specifically the ordinance amending Chapter 14.01
and the addition of 14.11.040, water availability policy. On Subsection B, it notes that if
the director fails to deliver written verification, it will be construed that adequate water is
unavailable. We are uncomfortable with that statement as it offers ... appears to offer no
accountability. The public deserves an answer as to either you have adequate water
source or you do not.
Under WR-1, Water Supply Rules, Section 14.11.30 [sic], exceptions or exemptions,
sorry, the burden of proof is on the applicant to offer substantial evidence. Exemptions
on Page 2 and 3 do not distinguish residential from commercial and there are implications
for small town business properties. Can we assume that if in Makawao Town, which is
not in an SMA area, property owners wishing to rebuild their store, put in additions, can
do so without a problem? How will the proposed ordinance affect business properties in
Paia Town, which are subject to SMA regulations? If a project is going to get an SMA
permit, we want to be sure it will not trigger this ordinance. What if a business owner
decides to put in an addition to their building or redevelop or put up a new building, can
we assume the ordinance exemption will also apply to them? We recommend that you
might look at expanding the exemption to include the redevelopment of existing projects
with existing zoning, particularly in traditional small towns where the area is not greater
than the existing project.
Thank you for this opportunity to offer comment on this very important item and issues.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Jocelyn. Members, questions? Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning, Jocelyn.
MS. PERREIRA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: By any chance, do you have copies of your testimony?
MS. PERREIRA: Not with me, but I can make them available to you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I'd like to have one. Thank you.
MS. PERREIRA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Jocelyn, when you were talking about the exemptions, you're talking
about the exemptions in the water availability bill, correct?
MS. PERREIRA: Right.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Item C, building, grading, or other ministerial construction permits as
described in Chapter 18.28. I'm sorry I don't have that right in front of me to read the
description but we will check on that. I think that might apply to your concern about
people who are redeveloping, or you know, if they currently have water, then they have
water.
MS. PERREIRA: We researched that and we found that to be very vague and that we do not
want that to not be very crystal clear that it will also exempt these, you know, small
towns, again, because there is very little clarification on the distinction between
residential and commercial.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah. Okay, we will take that under consideration.
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I don't know that we want to exempt commercial if we're not exempting
residential, but you know, in cases where somebody's redeveloping or expanding and,
and won't be using more water than they currently use, then I think that that would be an
exemption and we'll discuss that and make sure that it is.
MS. PERREIRA: Yeah, and I think we would concur with that, too, especially like in ... and
again, we are asking for special treatment in the small towns, particularly the traditional
small towns where the surrounding neighborhoods are also a part of the inherent flavor
and character of the small town. They go hand-in-hand, and we would certainly don't
want to jeopardize the homes in those areas also.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right. Thanks for bringing that to our attention.
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Any other questions, Members? Okay, seeing none. Thank you,
Jocelyn. Our next testifier is Rosemary Robbins and she'll be followed with ... by our
last testifier, Edward Smith.
MS. ROBBINS: Good morning, everybody. Thank you for this opportunity and tell me if I'm
doing this in the right sequence. Mine is not on a particular agenda item. It has to do
with water quality Up country.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Rosemary, we're constrained by the Sunshine Law to only have
testimony on items on our agenda. And ...
MS. ROBBINS: I don't have a copy of the agenda.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Pardon me.
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MS. ROBBINS: I don't have a copy of the agenda.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Agendas are on-line and your, your particular concern
Up country water quality?

IS

MS. ROBBINS: It is. I'm a concerned citizen and community volunteer working for the last
three years as a volunteer-CHAIR ANDERSON: Well ...
MS. ROBBINS: --on two of the grants that are dealing with folks Upcountry.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I'm going to let you speak under WR-4, the Water Use and Development
Plan because the Water Use and Development Plan has to do with water quantity and
water quality. So you can proceed.
MS. ROBBINS: Okay. Thank you very much. I'd like to just start out with an opening
paragraph in material that I left at your office on the 24th of May - appreciation for all of
you who are doing such good work. Thank you so much. I just know that you folks have
been working very hard on this. And the closing paragraph on that was again
appreciation to all who were working toward Maui No Ka Oi with pono the motivation.
The first thing I would like to just bring up on that is that the Maui Long Term Care
Partnership, Robert Wood Johnson Grant, is dealing particularly with seniors, with our
kupuna, and I found in papers from 1994, statements sent to people to their private homes
talking about lead in drinking water. And it talks in here about lead builds up in the body
over many years and can cause damage to the brain, red blood cells, and kidneys. So
whatever we've been trying to do and the testing that we've done on lead for children
between six months and six years, pregnant women, and nursing moms, covers a limited
segment to that population, and the fact is that the longer people have been exposed to it,
the more accumulated damage that has been done potentially to their bodies. So it's
coming out from the Department of Water from 1994.
And also in the '99 water quality reports it mentions that. .. there's a question in here
about where does the lead come from, and again, reading from here lead is unusual
among drinking water contaminants in that it seldom occurs naturally in water supplies
like rivers and lakes. Lead enters drinking water primarily as a result of the corrosion or
wearing away of materials containing lead in the water distribution and household
plumbing. So in terms of sequence and in terms of importance in this publication, the
Water Department was kind of the first area that would be looked at. So I just want us to
make sure that we remember that because over the duration of the EPA Oversight and
Advisory Committee grant that I've been working on, the stress has all been on whatever
comes from the meter to our homes.
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This document coming from the Department of Water in '99 was reminding us that the
way it got to the meter was through the water distribution system. So it's been something
that's been long time in coming and I just really ... (change tape, start IE) . .. I want to
see done and acknowledge that there's a way lot left to do and I'm sure that you know
that. In terms .. .I brought a sample of the water that I had taken from Kula Elementary.
This was the raw data water that began the testing up there. Dr. Pang was very concerned
about this when he saw that at our Water Oversight Advisory Committee meeting in
January. When the testing got done and then it seems as though the ball has been
dropped by I have no idea whom, but anyway, our kids are going back to school again at
the end of July.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MS. ROBBINS: So ... thank you. So I'm very concerned to know that whatever those of us who
were working on these volunteer committees can do in addition to alerting you what we
have found, please make sure that we get to do that. The notice ... the public notice that
was in the newspaper in May about the possibility of the Department of Health coming
over to conduct a public meeting providing that they heard from enough people on Maui
that that was something that we wanted prompted Stuart Yamada to call me while I was
on the mainland and to say that he had gotten quite a number of responses on that. And I
know the Kula Community Association and some of the churches had been involved in
that and I'm proud of them for having spoken up on their concerns. And he said that he
was going up to Toronto and I discovered afterwards that was probably part of the
American Water Works Association meeting. But at any rate he did say that that meeting
would take place probably in August so hooray for that and I would ask you to just keep,
keep that ball going to make sure that that happens and we'll do our best to get the
community out to respond to them. So thank you very much. Keep it up.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Rosemary, would you like to share with us what your findings were at
Kula Elementary?
MS. ROBBINS: I do have that. Hang on one sec.
CHAIR ANDERSON: While you're finding that I'm just going to kind of give people an idea
who may not be aware that the Up country Water Advisory Oversight Committee was
formed in response to the lead issue Up country and all the people with their rashes. And
they've been working very hard with grant funds that were supplied by the EPA, actually
at the behest of then Councilmember Dain Kane who went to Senator Inouye and he
provided the funding and so they've been working several years now. All volunteer on
their behalf and we're very much appreciative of you folks and your efforts and your
dedication because they are bringing forward information that I think the public wouldn't
normally get and certainly the Council wouldn't get.
MS. ROBBINS: Thank you. We promise to keep at that, too. The Kula Elementary Preliminary
Water Testing Report I'll be happy to leave with you. It's a "Water Oversight Advisory
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Committee Indicator Water Testing for Disinfection and Potential Contamination".
That's the long title for this document actually. I was one of the people who did go out
and collect samples. I had done that before. They'd been sent to a certified lab out of
Maui County. We don't have one. And the reports came back, you know, with allowable
contaminant levels, hmmm, and in several cases they were, hmmm, like it. .. Building A
drinking fountain with a hose bibb, 830,000 contaminant colonies there. In a room ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: Is that in parts per million? Is that how they measure it? In other words
the standard is 200 parts a unit. ..
MS. ROBBINS: CFU/ml per million. Another one was in a sink inside the room and I'm
continuing to teach in these classrooms, everywhere, not just Kula. I mean I'm up at
Waihee and I'm down in Kihei. But this one had 12,000 and that's a sink in a classroom.
And just to let you know that it is not a school budget item that has delivered bottled
water to each of those classrooms. That comes out of the individual teacher's decision as
to how he/she will spend the kitty of money that they get. So I have been in classrooms
where there is nothing but that sink there and when the kids get thirsty, they hover and
drink from it. I mean we've ... we practically babysit the hose bibb things to make sure
that that doesn't happen but this is happening in the classroom. So ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: They are flushing the system every day though, aren't they?
MS. ROBBINS: Got me. I've been gone in, and you know, not there to monitor this, but I'm
hoping so. It's just scary. And then when Dr. Pang did his ... oh, another one, drinking
fountain outside with a hose bibb ... 1,900 units of this so not healthy. On the days that
those were tested and we do know that the water fountain, the stem pipe coming out
down at the athletic field itself was flushed to ... {inaudible} . .. the night before we took
this testing. So I don't know. I. .. presumably nobody was camped out to see what
would have happened before and after on that one. But also Dr. Pang then went back and
did secondary testing and got the same results. So if this ... even if it is in a pattern, if it' s
one example of what I pulled out of that water and the fact that that one set of testing did
come back with these inordinate numbers, dangerous deals for our kids. And then on the
other end of the spectrum for our kupuna, we just. .. we have a lot of work to do and I
know everybody loves Maui and we want to just do our best and so count on us on the
committee to . . . on both of the committees that I'm working on to do that. The
Up country section of the Maui Long Term Care Partnership has decided that one of its
major three goals for this upcoming year is going to be water. So we're going to be
hearing a lot more cross coverage of concern from the people who are in the school with
the keiki and the people who are concerned with the kupuna and then there's all the rest
of you in between. So I just. . .I'm happy to answer questions that I can. There is also an
Up country Maui in-home heterotrophic plate count testing report as of July 26. So those
documents are available for both the home and the school.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Could you leave us copies of those?
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MS. ROBBINS: Can I get you to make them for me? I didn't bring copies down today.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yes. You can just leave it. Staffwill make a copy to make sure you get
it back.
MS. ROBBINS: I'd be happy to.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Any other questions, Members? Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: This is very disturbing information. It concerns me that our
children could be exposed to drinking water that is going to potentially hurt them and it
bothers me that this is left to discretion. It said .. .it shouldn't be. You know, I don't
mind if we want to use this water that's contaminated to do whatever you're going to do
with it like, you know, flushing toilets or washing out the sink or the mop or whatever.
But the water that the children actually consume, we need to somehow be a part of
finding a way to make it mandatory that that water is okay. I mean that's what most of us
are doing in our homes now. Like in our both homes, you know, we buy bottled water
for, for drinking and for consumption, but everything else of course we don't worry
about. And I see nothing less should be required in our schools because these are young
people, and you know, if they start with disease process when they're young, that doesn't
give them a good hands up-MS. ROBBINS: That's true.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --and it really concerns me. And I don't know what this
Committee can be a part of because this is the Department, probably of, Education or
Health area but we might be able to provide some encouragement.
MS. ROBBINS: One thing that we have found, Gladys, is that it tends to go ... the issue tends to
be passed to kind of a triad involved in here where it's the Department of Ed, the
Department of Health, and then the Department of Water here. So you've got State and
County and we're not really enthused about the fact that the buck hasn't really stopped
anywhere as far as change in that particular area. So, also I would just bring up that the
night after we had our February Oversight Advisory Committee for the EPA grant my
meter was shut off and the pipe was disconnected. And ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: For what reason?
MS. ROBBINS: Got me. But when I called the 24-hour service in the telephone book, it was
like a quarter of eleven at night, and the person who answered that wanted to know if it
was important that it be done tonight, and I certainly thought so. I didn't want to be
without water and God forbid there should be a fire or anything. And so he called and it
was your son actually who came - bless his heart - and took a look at this, took off a
little black box and said, oh, you're not even connected at all here. Again, bless his heart,
reconnected it at 12: 15 or something at night. But then I notified both Jefr s office and
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Eric's office about the fact that that had happened and when there was no action taken, I
called the police because I mean sort of destructive vandalism on something like that and
without having had a response I was really concerned. And then on March i h I wrote a
note in to Eric as the Deputy Director and asked what investigation has DWS done
concerning shutting off of DWS' meter, valve, and disconnection of pipe at my address,
and what had been done to respond to that and nothing still and we're in July. So, you
know, we've got people who .. .in the community who complained to us, those of us who
are on these committees, with a variety of complaints and we try, and you know, keep in
touch and, and let folks know. But again, when the buck gets passed or dropped, this
happening in the schools, happened in my particular. . .I mean I'm speaking firsthand on
this one and that kind of potential chilling effect just doesn't help anything. So ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: I just want people to know in case they don't 'cause not all of us are
scientists or chemists, but heterotrophic plate count is a measurement that reflects how
much bacteria is in the water in parts per million. It doesn't say what the bacteria is. It
just says it's a bacteria count. And I think the reason a lot of the ... you're feeling that
you're getting passed around is that the Department of Water Supply considers, and I
guess the State also, considers their responsibility in delivering the water stops at the
meter. From the meter to the house is the homeowner's responsibility and that appears to
be where the bacteria counts are a problem. But that doesn't mean that we can't become
aware of the situation, inform the consumer as to what's going on, and educate them on
how they can protect themselves and their family, and one way is to make sure that you
flush the water in the morning. Turn on your faucet and let it run so that you're flushing
the system out because the bacteria grows overnight in the water that sits in your pipes.
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair, right now that is a contradictory idea because I don't
know about anybody else who lives Up country but I have little post-it notes all over the
house telling people turn off the water while you brush your teeth and don't let the water
run, and you know, don't operate the washing machine unless we have a full load. And
you know, we're all trying to be so careful with supply that it's kind of controversial to
say open, you know, turn on the faucet and let it run. But if, you know, all this bacteria is
there, then I don't see that we have a choice.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, I think health takes precedence over everything. But you know,
conscientiously, you actually don't have to let it run if you're not going to use it.
MS. ROBBINS: I'd like to speak on behalf of the children at school. At the Kula Community
Association I had brought this issue up and the ... one of the people who was at the Kula
Community Association meeting that night said, oh, that's a simple solution. We...I
have a child there, said this man, and we send the child with bottled water. And it wasn't
up to me to argue with that meeting but I'm there at the school. I see how many children
are getting not only federally subsidized lunches but breakfast. These kids don't come
from families where they can just put a bottle of water in each child's hand when he goes
off to the bus.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: And we shouldn't have to drink bottled water to get clean, reliable water.
So I'm going to cut it off here, Members, because this is really not an agenda item.
We're happy that you brought the matter to our attention, Rosemary. If you'll leave your
reports with Staff, she'll make copies and get the originals back to you.
MS. ROBBINS: Will do. Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MS. ROBBINS: Thank you all.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you. And you know, this is not a particular item on our agenda
that I have established for today. I have established this item on our agenda and I will
bring this up and we'll talk more about it with some of these reports, and hopefully, get
Dr. Pang to come in and talk to the Committee because I think education is one thing that
we can do. And you know, water quality is a policy matter that is within the Council's
purvIew.
So our last testifier, Members, is Edward Smith and he'll be speaking on Item WR-12.
Oh, I'm sorry, we have one more testifier after Mr. Smith, Carl Freedman.
MR. SMITH: Good morning, everybody. Smithy from Pukalani. You folks have a two-page
packet from me. There's one error the .. .I typed it out, anyway supposed to be attached
newsprint. .. newspaper print. That newsprint was never returned to me in time but
there's other communications sent to me in regard to my issue of chloramines. You
know, the newspaper article was in I believe this past month, June, saying that they were
going to mix ammonia and chlorine again Up country in our water system. This is a .. .I
believe is more than a health hazard. Everybody, everybody don't in their right mind
don't drink chlorine and ammonia. It has destroyed human health. It will continue
destroy human health, livestock, farming enterprises, et cetera, et cetera. There's a lot of
small farmers that depend on this water. That using water that the, the big farmers don't
use so the big farmers don't have this problem. But it destroys everything on our
property.
What I was concerned about mostly was as you read this letter that I typed out, I looked
at the news article and I, I. . .it's more than appears that it is not a proper notification. It
don't. . .it don't state the month, the day, the time, that the residents should be prepared
for this attack of chlorine and ammonia. There's no notice how long the treatment would
take. There's no notice, the month, day, and time, that it is safe to drink the water again
without ammonia and chlorine.
And my second ... my second concern was who will be supplying the residents, the
children, the elderly seniors in our .. .in, in all given areas with safe drinking water. I'm
not talking about the water canyon [sic] that they had up at the Hannibal Tavares' Park
- 16 -

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 2, 2007

one year where it was more contaminated than the water that was being treated. The
chlorine was so high in there that it smelled stink from a block away. You could smell it
when it would be pumped into people's bottles. This is a health risk, a health hazard.
You destroy kidneys that's not on dialysis yet. You making victims out of innocent
people. This is uncalled for.
Now the people that have a huge family they need safe water. Who's going to
supplement their cost? You're going to buy water for if this going take one week or two
days to, you know, you have people that need water to take a bath, the animals, livestock,
the small farmer's vegetables, drinking water. It can average a family maybe about 100
bucks or so per week. Who going supplement them? Plus, they still gotta pay for their,-MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. SMITH: --pay for their water meter fees, et cetera. I mentioned that you read this letter
that I. .. that you have in your presence and take this into consideration. I wanted to give
.. .I can give you folks a copy of a... then you folks can make copies of in conjunction
with what Rosemary Robbins had discussed here at our school board. . .our school
problems like the Kula School. This is communication that I sent out to the School
Superintendent in Honolulu, to the Governor, and Lieutenant Governor. They had no
idea what was going on here. So I went overboard .. .I went out of our group and did this
on my own. I got response from the Superintendent of schools on the issues. And I don't
know if you folks got my copies but you folks can have my copies now. If! can't get this
problem settled within our own Maui County government and the State, then I will take
this out of our district and take it to higher authorities. Our lives, ... {inaudible} . .. , our
health and safety is involved here. I ask for your kokua. Thank you very much.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Smith. Members, any questions? Seeing none. We'll
try to address your concerns.
MR. SMITH: Thank you very much.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you. Carl Freedman is our last testifier. He'll be testifying on
WR-13.
MR. FREEDMAN: Hello, Members of the Committee. My name is Carl Freedman. As you
know, I'm a consultant to the Department of Water Supply. I'm not here to take any
controversial positions on anything. I had some suggested specific wording changes and
you can tell me whether this is the right time to do that. If you're going to not going to
move this out, perhaps I could talk with you or your staff. But in ... so you can stop me if
you want, but in the water availability section 040, number 3, which is on Page 4 of what
you handed out is a list of criteria that would dictate to the Water Director when there
shall not be a finding of a long-term reliable ... reliable supply. And since these are so
specifically worded, the Water Director has very little discretion so I wanted to address
three suggestions. One is in (a). There's a list of several things which are not to be
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exceeded. The first one is a maximum so you don't want to exceed 90 percent of the
sustainable yield but the instream flow standards are actually minimums. You really do
want to ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: So wait, wait, Carl, let's all get on the same page here.
MR. FREEDMAN: Okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Page 4, Item 3, at the bottom of the page?
MR. FREEDMAN: Yes. It says the finding of a long-term reliable sup ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: Number 4 or Number 3?
MR. FREEDMAN: Number 3.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. FREEDMAN: Number 3 is you will not make a... the Director will not make a finding if
any of these criteria happen, right. And in (a) there's a list of the i, ii, iii, and iv ... those
are the four things. The first one is a maximum, 90 percent, percent of sustainable yield
so you don't want to exceed that. But the other ones are actually minimums. You know,
so you do want to exceed those. So I would suggest putting ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: You mean the rest of them are minimum in stream flow standards?
MR. FREEDMAN: All. .. the rest of them are standards. If you want a minimum, it's a
minimum amount of water in the stream. So under all circumstances, you want to exceed
that minimum. So I would just suggest after the words "exceed" putting "exceed or
violate".
CHAIR ANDERSON: Or what?
MR. FREEDMAN: Viol. .. or violate.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Or violate.
MR. FREEDMAN: So it would say to exceed or violate that list of things.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. FREEDMAN: And then in Sections B and Section D, I would suggest adding the word
"adversely" in front of the word "impact" because in some cases the developer's project
as he brings it in may actually beneficially impact the, the water list if there's a... for
example, if there's a source attached with the development of source attached with the
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development. So all those suggestions are just made to implement the existing intent.
Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: That's good. We appreciate it. Members, any other questions? Okay,
folks, if there's anyone in the audience who would like to testify, now is your time to
come forward or I'm going to close testimony. Without objections from the Members,
testimony will be closed.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. So, Members, I see you looking. Under Item 13, the bill is a few
documents ... two documents from the back.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair, is that the June 26, '07 memo that was sent?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah,-COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --June 26. So we're going to take that up shortly, Members, but I just
want to give the Director an opportunity. I know with the drought situation Up country
everybody's very concerned on what's happening and Pookela Well has been long since
or long seen as our saving grace but I guess it isn't. So on that depressing note, would
you like to give us an update, Mr. Director, on the status of the Pookela Well?
ITEM NO. 12

POOKELA WELL (c.e. No. 05-44)

MR. ENG: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good morning, Members. Yes, the Department is
pleased to announce that we actually got Pookela Well operational and online toward the
latter part of May. As you know, from the first of this year that was one of our top
priorities was to get that thing going and, and operational. We did assign one of our
engineers, one of our valuable and scarce engineers, almost full-time to work with the
contractor to get that thing in operation. And it got really a big concern for us around the
first of May when we realized that we weren't getting any rain. We didn't have rain
really over the winter to speak of and the reservoirs were beginning to decline in levels so
they hustled it through. We basically started doing some operational testing about after,
after mid-May still not knowing if we had a lot of bugs, but because we felt we had
addressed maybe 95 percent of those operational bugs we believed that we could put it
online. So we didn't have an official date. I would say roughly it was around May 24
that we put it on full-time into this system. And it's .. .it came just in the nick of time.
We are able to pump 1.3 million gallons per day. The water quality is very, very good.
There's no contaminants. The chlorides are very nominal and it, you know, we're really
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fortunate to have had it available during this drought period. Without that, I'm afraid to
find out where we ... where we would be at this time.
We're also though ... we do have another well in the system that we're trying to hustle to
get back online and this is the Kaupakalua Well. That well went out of service early in
April. I believe it was pumping at a rate of about 800 gallons per minute .. .I'm sorry,
800,000 gallons per day. And we're expediting its return. It's been repaired in Texas.
We had made the decision to at least fly in a portion of its journey back, at least the leg
from LA to Honolulu we will be air shipping it. If everything goes right and we get the
contractor on island, we can hopefully get it back in service and online, operational, I'm
looking at the date of July 27. But despite that being back online, it won't necessarily
address the drought warning situation we're in because the draw down from the
reservoirs exceeds the capacity at which it can be pumped. So we anticipate that this
summer the drought is going to only get worse. We were real fortunate the past few days
to have some, some rain Upcountry. We gained a little bit this weekend at the Kaka ...
Kahakapao Reservoirs. As you know, we've been pumping up from Kamole to .. .I
pretty much want to top the Piiholo Reservoirs in anticipation of this long summer. So
we're nearing full capacity at Piiholo, and you know, but we're really at the mercy of
Mother Nature. But. ..
CHAIR ANDERSON: Director, if! could interrupt you because ...
MR. ENG: Certainly.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Later in our agenda we will have an opportunity to go more in-depth on
the drought under our Water Supply Rules. That's how it's been agendized and if we
could just stick with Pookela and ... because I don't want to get into a long discussion on
drought right now until we get to that item. Okay?
MR. ENG: Okay. Certainly.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So the Pookela Well feeds into the Makawao system?
MR. ENG: Yes. So basically it feeds into the Makawao system which is also served by Kamole
Weir Water Treatment Plant. But we have some options with that system. We can serve
the Makawao-Pukalani-Haliimaile area, and as well, we can pump it through the Lower
Kula system. So there is a certain amount of flexibility there that's really important to
our entire ability to serve Upcountry.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And so do you want to mention about the chloramines because I know
Pookela ... the Pukalani-Makawao area also had the chloramines added to their water. If
you could explain that briefly to people?
MR. ENG: Yes. I'd like to clarify, particularly for Mr. Smith, our situation, is we basically use
chlorine for like the Makawao ... the Makawao system, as well as the Lower Kula system,
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which is off of the Piiholo Water Treatment Plant. At the Upper Kula system we use
chloramines, which is a combination of chlorine and ammonia, and the reason we do that
is because we're trying to mitigate and minimize the development of these disinfection
by-products, commonly known as trihalomethanes. Chloramines is, in our opinion, the
ideal disinfectant. Plain chlorine is probably the most effective but because of the
disinfection by-products concern we're currently using that. We ... (change tape, start
2A) . .. are hoping that with capital projects that we can address the organic carbon and
remove it or reduce it in the Up country water, then we will no longer use chloramines
and we will go to just plain chlorination, which again was most effective. And hopefully,
it will even address some of the bacteria concerns Up country, too. We can boost up the
chlorine without the fear of developing these disinfection by-products.
So right now it's really a balancing act. You know, we've identified what we have to do.
We have money in the budget this year to first put in a organic carbon reduction facility
at Piiholo and then afterward we'd like to do that at Olinda in the future.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Director. The concern about disinfection by-products
is that they are cancer causing and so you don't want, you know, on the one hand to try to
solve the bacteria problem only to have another problem as a result of it. So as I said, we
will be bringing up water quality and bringing some people to explain the situation to the
community through this Committee in the future. And I do want to just let you folks
know that the EPA is coming forward with the comprehensive performance evaluation
for the Upcountry system and we're hoping they'll be here in September, the very latest
the first of August, I mean October. And . . . so that will help all of us in better
understanding how to maximize the Up country system and to deal with the bacteria
problem. So we're looking forward to that. So if there's any other questions about
Pookela? Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Thank you very much. Mr. Eng, good
morning and thank you. You indicate that currently out ofPookela it's ... you're getting
1.3 mdg [sic]. That is what you're currently able to pump now. What is the ... what is
the maximum that could be pumped out ofPookela?
MR. ENG: Member Mateo, that is actually the maximum. We are pumping that well 24 hours
per day.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, and because, because Pookela was looked at as the great
savior in helping to alleviate the drought situation for Up country - apparently it is not - is
the .. .is the next phase with Pookela the consideration of the development of storage that
will be directly hooked up to Pookela?
MR. ENG: Well, there's a couple of things we're looking at right now. Is ... one is, we're
anticipating the development of the Piiholo Well, that I believe is on the agenda, that
Maui Pine is, is developing and the community will have an allocation of capacity from
that well. One of the projects that we are just beginning to look into because I think it's
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probably one of our most significant projects Upcountry is additional raw water storage
at Piiholo. That will be a big ticket item. You know, we'll have to .. .I've recently met
with Department of Ag and NRCS. One is to see if they had any money, which they
didn't, but just to get some discussion going and give me some direction of how we can
pursue this ... this long needed and dreamt of storage facility being that it would be of. ..
again, we're looking at 300 million gallons. It will be very, very expensive. It's
definitely one of the most expensive projects that the County will have undertaken
probably in the order of at least $100 million. So that's a challenge that the Department
is facing is, is not only planning and designing it, but we know we have to start it now,
but it is funding, and so I'll keep you posted as I proceed on this.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Pontanilla. Excuse me, Joe, just one second.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Sure.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I just want to kind of set the stage. You know, the last we were told that
Pookela was going to give us 1.5 million and that. .. this was last year and that already
300,000 gallons had been issued in water on the anticipation of Pookela and that was
what we were told last year. Now this year we were told that only 200,000 gallons was
issued on the expectation of Pookela and that now it's only 1. 3. So you can understand
not only our frustration but the public's frustration so I just want to get that really clear
that we cannot expect anymore than 1.3 and that there will be no new meters issued.
That you've already issued 200,000 gallons and that's it based on what we currently have
available. Is that correct?
MR. ENG: Yes. That is, unfortunately, correct. As you know, I was hoping earlier that we
could issue some new meters off of this. The equivalent of about 200 meters were issued
of offPookela back in 2004. But it's clear to all of us is that, you know, we shouldn't be
issuing additional meters and bring Up country water systems in a further water deficit.
So the prudent thing to do and the correct thing to do is not issue additional meters until
new sources are developed.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Director Eng. I'm sorry, Joe. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you for that question, Chair. In regards to one of
the testifiers, he provided us with some written testimony. In fact, this is from Mr. Smith.
On the second page, he gives us the Up country water system and my interest is where
does the Pookela Well fit. Does the Pookela two million gallons that's located at. .. well,
close to Kamole Water Treatment Facility, and you mentioned that the Pookela Well will
be coming online and it's going to be at the Piiholo Water Treatment Facility?
MR. ENG: Member Pontanilla, so you can see where the Pookela Tank is located ... the two
million gallon tank?
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COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Yes.
MR. ENG: So you can almost write underneath there Pookela Well and draw an arrow to the
tank and that's where it enters the Makawao system.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay, good. Thank you.
MR. ENG: You're welcome.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay, Members, any other questions on Pookela? Thank you, Director.
Sort of anticlimactic, isn't it? And very disappointing. And please don't take it personal,
Director Eng, but the Council I think is weary of hearing one thing one year and another
thing the next year so I'm sure the public is also. So, Members ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Madam Chair?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: If I could just, just to provide an additional perhaps question to
the Director? It has to do with, with Pookela primarily because Pookela has been a well
that this County has been waiting for for five and a half, six years, and your. . .in
referencing the need for additional water one of your comments was that we need to look
at the development of new source. I'm just afraid that if this is the track record, and it's
not your kuleana, this is an inherited problem, if this is our track record in being able to
develop new source, we're in deeper things than we actually have been told. Because we
cannot wait five and a half, six years for the development of a new source to come online.
So just, you know, I'm hoping that the Director is able to took. .. take a look at how our
wells are being prepped to get online because the standing ... the status currently is just
not adequate, nor is it acceptable for. .. to meet, to meet our needs. Thank you, Mr. Eng.
Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Member Mateo, and you kind of prompted me to also add
onto that. There was quite a discussion at the last Board of Water Supply meeting. I
think it was .. .I read minutes of several meetings this weekend so I can't remember
which one it was but I think it was March. And that members of the Board, there are in
the contract, you know, failure to perform clauses in the contract and that the. . .I think
many of the Board members wanted you to look into instigating those failure to performs
and, and I guess penalize or withhold payment or fine or something. Would you like to
address that? Because, you know, if people aren't doing what their contract tells them to
do and we're years beyond getting a fulfillment of the contract that we paid for, why is
there no penalty? Director Eng.
MR. ENG: Madam Chair, Members, generally there are penalties that we could assess for
liquidated damages and various things. In this particular project, Pookela Well, as I
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understand it and we have critiqued this project with my engineering staff, and the
message I've gotten from them is that this is the worst project they've ever seen and
there's just one thing after another as, you know, you might have recalled as you read
various accounts from even the previous Administrations. But, yeah, it's a nightmare and
it will never be done like this again. Insofar as any penalties, you know, we would have
to penalize ourselves significantly too. So it's that. . .it's that difficult and the
Department and the County had some, some, you know, responsibility for what happened
with this project.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Oh, so it's not just the contractor's fault?
MR. ENG: No, no. It was a combination.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Madam Chair. I just wanted to add some comments
to this discussion as a person who's lived Up country all my life and dealt with this water
issue as long as I can remember of wanting ... wanted .. .I don't even want to think about
it it's so bad. My home, of course, was very involved in the Pookela Well because my
husband was assigned to that project while it was happening. So we kind of lived the
Pookela Well saga in our house. But what I'm really worried about is the talk about new
wells and new sources. You know, it concerns me and I want to make it known that one
of the ways we go about developing new wells is having private entities or private
corporations develop wells for us and when that happens there is a contract with them so
they automatically are entitled to a percentage of the water which is fair. They've spent
the money, they get some of the water, and they also have the right to a certain amount of
meters which enables them to build a subdivision and get to the head of the class.
Whereas, if we did it ourselves, we could have all the water and we could maybe take
care of the people that have been waiting for generations. So that concerns me that we
continue to do that-CHAIR ANDERSON: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --and that is the case with the Piiholo Well, too.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Ms. Baisa, we will be discussing that on the agenda-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --today under Item WR-16 and I'll direct you to that. There is a copy of
the Piiholo Agreement under that item.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: That's something that I wanted us to discuss today.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Alright. Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So, Members, we're going to move on. My intention is I want to give us
a really quick little PowerPoint. It will probably take about six minutes. Then we'll take
our morning break, then we're going to come back, and we're going to put this water
availability bill up on the wall so the public who's watching can also track this bill. I
don't think it's fair for us to be discussing something that they don't have in front of
them. So I think it's going to be helpful if we can put it up on the wall.
ITEM NO. 13

PROHIBITING DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS WITHOUT A LONGTERM RELIABLE SOURCE OF WATER (C.C. No. 05-271)

CHAIR ANDERSON: What I've done is ... you know, this bill was an effort ... a combined
effort of many people, and again, I want to thank Dain Kane for bringing this forward in
'05 and it's kind of morphed a little bit since then. Those of you who recall, the end of
March or actually the very beginning of March, we passed out of Committee, or at least
we adopted in Committee, the water allocation bill. But we were very eager in doing that
and in doing so we sort of overlooked the fact that we made workforce housing projects a
priority and that really won't work because all projects are now required to be involved in
the workforce housing policy. So that means every project would be a priority. So what
I tried to do with this bill is include affordable housing as a priority - 100 percent
affordable.
And I don't expect us to pass this bill out today, Members. It's going to take us a couple
of meetings. The idea today is to get the bill out, get us all familiar with it, get the
questions up, and allow us to fine tune it as we move along so that there's no objections everybody's clear what the expectations are. And the PowerPoint I want to do is just by
means of giving people some background. We have some new Members who don't have
the same background in water policy as some of us have and so I think it's very important
that we get a little update on how the State Water Policy and the State Water Code works
and where our jurisdiction lies, what the mandates are from the State, so that you
understand what's in this bill is not reinventing the wheel. It's already required
throughout the State in various statutes, State Constitution, even in some of the bills or
the ordinances that the County currently has. It's just that this is consolidating all of this
and requesting that it happen upfront so that everybody knows we're talking about real
water, not paper water.
Okay. So the State Water Code, of course, is what governs not only the State, but the
County. We're mandated to follow the State Water Code and the State ... the policy of
the State is that the waters of the State are held for the benefit of the citizens of the State.
It's declared that the people of the State are beneficiaries and have a right to the waters
protected for their use ... to have the waters protected for their use. All of this is straight
out ofHRS 174C.
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There is a need for a program of comprehensive water resource planning to address the
problems of supply and conservation of water. The Hawaii Water Plan with such future
amendments, supplements, and additions as may be necessary is accepted as the guide for
developing and implementing this policy.
State Water Code shall be liberally interpreted to obtain maximum beneficial use of the
waters of the State for purposes such as domestic uses, aquaculture uses, irrigation, and
other agriculture uses, power development, and commercial and industrial uses.
However, adequate provision shall be made for the protection of traditional and
customary Hawaiian rights. The protection and procreation of fish and wildlife, the
maintenance of proper ecological balance and scenic beauty, and the preservation and
enhancement of waters of the State for municipal uses, public recreation, public water
supply, agriculture, and navigation. Such objectives are declared to be in the public
interest.
State Water Code shall. .. shall be liberally interpreted to protect and improve the quality
of waters of the State and to provide that no substance be discharged into such waters
without first receiving the necessary treatment or other corrective action. The people of
Hawaii have a substantial interest in the prevention, abatement, and control of both new
and existing water pollution and in the maintenance of high standards of water quality.
The State Water Code shall be liberally interpreted and applied in the manner which
conforms with the intentions and plans of the counties in terms of land use planning.
There's our mandate, Members. And I want you to understand there's a difference
between strict. .. strictly interpreted and liberally interpreted. And when, when the
Legislature spells it out in a statute, that gives us permission to liberally interpret the
Code. That means broadly interpret it to meet its mandate and that in this instance is to
make sure that it's applied so that it conforms with the intention and plans of the counties
in terms of land use planning. Thank you, Kim.
So I want to just briefly explain what the Hawaii Water Plan is for Members who are not
familiar. The Hawaii Plan ... Water Plan consist of a Water Resource Protection Plan,
County Water Use and Development Plans, a State Water Projects Plan, and a Water
Quality Plan, and all of these plans together form the Hawaii State Water Plan. The
Water Resources Protection Plan has been finalized. So has the Water Quality Plan. I
think both of those were finalized in 1990. The State Water Projects Plan is a State
revolving plan ... the water, water resources revolving plan that we .. .I think we got two
projects this year funded from that plan. But all of these are supposed to work in concert
together. Kim.
The Water Resources Protection Plan, the reason I think you'll need to understand what
this is, Members, is because this is a criteria for review in this water availability bill. The
plan includes the nature and occurrence of water resources in the State, spells out the
hydrological units, their characteristics, including the quantity and quality of the available
resource, and the requirements for beneficial in stream uses and environmental protection,
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desirable uses worthy of preserving and undesirable uses for which permits may be
denied. It includes existing and planned uses of water as identified in each county's
Water Use and Development Plan, their impact on the resource, and their consistency
with objectives and policies in the Water Resource Protection and Water Quality Plans.
It also includes programs to conserve, augment, and protect the water resource, and it
calls for an identification of streams to be preserved and protected as part of the public
trust. DLNR is still working on that - identifying those particular streams. Also, it
includes the study of the quantity and quality of water needed for existing and
contemplated uses, including irrigation, power development, and municipal uses. The
study also includes drainage, reclamation, flood hazards, flood plain zoning, dam safety dam safety, and selection of reservoir sites as they relate to the protection, conservation,
quantity, and quality of water. This is all part of the Water Resources Protection Plan,
Members.
The Water Use and Development Plan which we're hoping to get done in the next year
and a half to two years rather than six years projected because the Council has put money
towards that effort. The Water Use and Development Plan is supposed to include a status
of the water and related land development including inventory of existing water uses for
domestic, municipal and industrial users, agriculture, aquaculture, hydropower
development, drainage, reuse, reclamation, recharge, and resulting problems and
constraints. That's a plan that lays out the whole spectrum of water use and, and how we
can plan for its proper dispensation, I guess, and management to meet all these uses.
Kim.
It needs to include future land uses and related water needs. Future land uses would be in
conjunction with our Community Plans and our General Plan. Regional plans for water
developments including recommended and alternative plans, costs, adequacy of plans and
relationship to the Water Resources Protection and Water Quality Plans. So our Water
Use and Development Plan has to take into consideration those parameters that have
already been laid out in the Resource Protection Plan and the Water Quality Plan. In
formulating and revising each county's Water Use and Development Plan, the State's
Water Projects Plan, the Water Resource Protection, and Water Quality Plans, each
county and the State shall incorporate the current and foreseeable development and use
needs of the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands for water as provided in Section 222
[sic] of the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act. Each county shall update and modify its
Water Use and Development Plan as necessary to maintain consistency with its zoning
and land use policies. Mind you, Members, this is State statute that I'm reading. This is
not my language. This is right out of the statute. Each Water Use and Development Plan
and the State Water Projects Plan shall be consistent with the respective county land use
plans and policies, including General Plans and zoning.
The Maui County Water Use and Development Plan was adopted by ordinance in 1990.
An updated plan was submitted in 1992 but was not adopted by the State Commission on
Water Resource Management. There had been no modifications, updates, or amendments
to our Water Use and Development Plan since 1990. So we're flying by the seat of our
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pants here, folks, and that's why we need strong legislation such, such as this water
availability bill to ensure that what we don't have in front of us in a plan to ensure that
water will be available that we do it at the County level while we're waiting for this to
happen. Kim.
I just wanted to reiterate a landmark decision, some of you may not be aware of to the
extent that I think is important in conjunction with this bill, and that was the 2000 Hawaii
Supreme Court decision on Waiahole Ditch. I'm sure you've all heard about it. But the
Hawaii Supreme Court overruled in their decision a determination by the State Water
Resource Commission in its distribution of water permits for the waters of the Waiahole
Ditch. The Supreme Court criticized the Water Commission in its lengthy opinion and
among those criticisms they stated that they're troubled by the Commission's permissive
view towards stream diversions. We've rejected the idea of public streams serving as
convenient reservoirs for offstream private use. The court described the public trust
relating to water resources as the authority and duty to maintain the purity and flow of
our waters for future generations and to assure that the waters of our land are put to
reasonable and beneficial use.
Basically, the Supreme Court reaffirmed and upheld the State Constitution in actually
underscoring Article XI, Section 1, that says, for the benefit of present and future
generations, the State and its political subdivisions - that's us, Members - shall protect
and conserve all natural resources including water and shall promote the development
and utilization of these resources in a manner consistent with their conservation. All
public natural resources are held in trust for the benefit of the people. Section 7 says, the
State has an obligation to protect, control, and regulate the use of Hawaii's water
resources for the benefit of the people.
The Public Trust Doctrine was underscored in the Waiahole decision, and for those of
you who are not familiar, it basically is an overlying web of laws that put the public trust
at the forefront of protection. In their decision, they quoted a case in California in
determining the Public Trust Doctrine and they said that there can be no question that the
Constitution declares and creates a public trust of public natural resources for the benefit
of all people including those yet unborn. The Waiahole decision articulated the Public
Trust Doctrine as a standard by which the State must manage the distribution and
allocation of all surface and ground waters. The court held that the essential feature of
the public trust is the right of the people to have the water protected for their use.
So that's my brief little summary and I just wanted to make sure that you were all. .. and
actually the public was aware of what these standards are and why we have it within our
power to request that anyone who wants to use a portion of the public trust can prove that
they can do so without adverse impact the beneficial uses of that trust for the rest of the
public. So, Members, any questions on what you just saw? Thank you.

- 28 -

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 2, 2007

We're going to take a ten minute break and be back in the chambers at, at ten to eleven.
Please don't be late. We will proceed immediately at ten to eleven. This Committee is in
recess. .., (gavel). .. .., (change tape, start 2B) . ..
RECESS:

10:38 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:51 a.m.

CHAIR ANDERSON: .. , (gavel) . .. Water Resources Committee, July 2nd, is now reconvened.
What we're going to do is ... oh, we got the lights down enough?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Do you think I should go more?
CHAIR ANDERSON: 1f. . .I think, I think that's good enough. I'm not sure if TV can see it
well, but if they can't, they can call us. How's that, Members? Is that okay?
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. Perfect.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. So this is the draft of the bill and Members, I hope you've all
found it in your binders and we're going to go along with that. I think what I will do is
skip the definitions because definitions don't mean much until you see the context in
which they're used. So we'll go back to that later and get right to the meat of the bill.
Thank you, Kim.
Okay. So I'm just going to read through this, Members. I think that's the best way. The
ordinance codified in this chapter shall be known as the water availability policy. And
mind you, Members, please, anything you see that you would like to change or you have
any questions on as we go through this, raise your hand, interrupt me along the way. I
don't intend to get into any deep discussions. What I intend to do is ask. . .get the
questions out so that we can make sure that this bill is clear in its intent and that
everybody understands it. So stop me as we go along if you think that there should be a
change. And I'm stopping right now because water availability policy may be something
we might want to change but that is the intent of what we're doing.
Can everyone see their papers well enough at their desks? Oh, you got overhead lights.
Okay.
The Council acknowledges and affirms that water is a natural and cultural resource that
must be protected, preserved, and managed as a public trust, and hereby establishes a
policy that integrates water and land use planning. The purpose of this chapter is to
assure the availability of a long-term, reliable supply of water before land use
entitlements are approved. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, all requests for
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land use entitlements specified herein shall comply with the requirements specified by
this chapter.
Applicability and scope. The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all requests or
applications for land use entitlements governed by Chapter 18, which is our subdivision
ordinance; Chapter 19, which is our zoning bill; and Chapter 2.80B, which is our
community plan and general plan ordinance, unless specifically exempted by Section
14.11.030. No land use entitlement, including changes in zoning, preliminary or final
subdivision plans, or general and community plan amendments and not part of a
comprehensive plan, shall be issued unless request for, oops ...
MS. WILLENBRINK: The request or application.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Applica ... unless the request or application conforms to the provisions of
this chapter. Verification of the availability - I just want to stop right there, Members.
We did pass out to you a handout that gives you the section in Chapter 19 and the section
in Chapter 18 that talks about an application for a subdivision or an application for a
change in zoning or a community plan amendment, what they are required to do currently
so you can see that. There is currently a, a half-baked attempt to get this information but
this bill will strengthen that. Verification of the availability, availability of a long-term,
reliable supply of water pursuant to Section 14.11.040 shall not constitute an assurance or
guarantee of water or water meters.
Exemptions. This chapter shall not apply to family subdivisions, for immediate family
That's the standard
members, as described in Sections 18.20.280B.1 and B.2.
subdivision ... family subdivision provision in the Subdivision Code.
B. Developments where 100 percent of the total number of units and/or lots shall be sold
or rented to households, households earning less than 140 percent of the median income
for the County of Maui as set forth by the Department of Housing and Urban
Development of the United States of America. This provision what we did is we just took
the great. . .greater percentage allowable to be deemed affordable under our current
workforce housing policy which is 140 percent of the median income and use that as a
starting point. The exemption in the California bill is for low income housing only. So
low income is defined in our workforce housing bill as - what, Member Mateo, is that
100 percent or 80 percent?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Eighty.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Eighty percent is what low income is defined as. So we've got 140
percent without any breakdown as to how, how much of it would be for 140, how much
for 120. That's something that we may want to work out. Ms. Baisa, you had a
comment.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes, Chair. I was trying to relate this piece about low income to
the workforce housing bill and I wanted to see if it interfaced and I know that the
workforce housing bill goes up to 160. So I wanted to be sure that they were in sync
because I'm afraid that I don't want a contradiction that we might affect affordable
housing.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right. I'm sorry, I, I forgot that it went up to 160.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I think it goes 80 to 160.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right. So we'll check on that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah. If you could, please.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And, and I think we need to look at some various scenarios and also work
them out in, you know, actual dollars and cents.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Right. I just bring it up so that it's something we might want to
check.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Okay. Let's go on.
C. Exemption. Building, grading, or other ministerial construction permits as described
in 18.28 and that was the section that Ms. Perreira brought to our attention so we'll be
also looking at that to make sure that we're not going to adversely impact any
redevelopment of our small towns.
Water availability policy. Here's where we get into the meat of it. No land use
entitlements governed by Chapter 18, 19, or 2.8B. .. 80B shall be approved, granted, or
otherwise authorized unless the applicant identifies a long-term, reliable supply of water
to serve the development. The applicant's identification of a long-term, reliable supply of
water that will meet the projected demand associated with the proposed development
shall be supported by substantial evidence. The substantial evidence may include, but is
not limited to any of the following, a water supply and quality assessment pursuant to the
water use and development plan.
Do you want to move that up, Kim?
A water supply and quality assessment pursuant to the general plan and relevant
community plans or other reliable information relating to the sufficiency and quality of
water that contains analytical information provided by the department, the State of
Hawaii, or the USGS. Ms. Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair, I just pointed it out to your Staff and I'll mention it again,
where it refers to the Director, I thought maybe it would be clearer because even in the
definitions it doesn't say that it's the Director of the Water Department.
CHAIR ANDERSON: You know, in the ... this is going into Chapter 14 and-VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --the definitions at the beginning of Chapter 14 say that the Director is
the Director of Water Supply.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Because it wasn't in this, in this ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: No, not in this particular chapter.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Because I looked for it.
CHAIR ANDERSON: But as it fits into the, the whole scheme of things everything under
chapter or Title 14, the Director is defined as the Director of Water Supply.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay, just want to be sure.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah. Thank you. Okay. The Director shall verify in writing the
availability of this long-term, reliable supply of water from a public or private source or
shall supply notification of the unavailability of water within 45 days of the applicant's
request. If the Director fails to deliver the written verification as required by this section,
it shall be construed that adequate water is unavailable. The Director shall not verify the
availability of water unless the applicant meets its burden of identifying and proving a
long-term, reliable supply of water with substantial evidence to Subsection A.
Those folks in the gallery who are having a discussion, could you go to the lobby, please.
This was also the section I think that Mr. Bachman brought up that there should be some
response. I think that we should look at that but there is a 45-day limit here. So, you
know, we can't. . .if the applicant doesn't give the add ... the information necessary to
make a determination based on these criteria, then and if say the Director is waiting for
him ... for the applicant to give him more information and the 45 days expires before that
happens, then it's I think fair to say you haven't proved substantial evidence and, and no
response means the water is not available.
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Madam Chair?
- 32 -

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 2, 2007

CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: I have a difficult ... with this part. I have a very difficult part
accepting that because to me the Director's responsibility to tell us yes or no for whatever
the reason. I do not think that no answer means that there's no water available. I think
they should say and the Director should be directly responsible saying, yes, we got the
information; no, we have not and we are not going to proceed. So I think some kind of
verbal exchange where the Director does respond I think is very paramount for this one.
I don't think assumptions should be left in that respect and I respectfully ask that we look
at that a little more carefully.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. That's good, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Madam Chair?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Also, to continue on with Mr. Victorino's comments. I, I think
the duration that's placed on the Director, I think it would be appropriate if it. .. the
source is a County source because we have records of County sources. Private sources
we .. .it's ... we're not. .. they're not required to provide us that information so it might
require a greater length of time for the Director to actually get that kind of information
from the private source in order to verify the accessibility to water.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, if, if, you know, if the applicant wants to get this approval, he'll
make sure that the information is provided-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --to the Director.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No, but what's, what's provided to the applicant could be one
thing but when the Director is the one who needs to verify it, then it could be something
else. So in all fairness to both sides I think in the, in the urgency to get an application
through, I wouldn't put it beyond anybody to say we got the water, but when the push
comes to shove and you got to substantiate that you actually have it, then that's another
song altogether.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair.
Director any thoughts on this?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, you know what, ...
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VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, I. ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I want to hear it.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I think it's too early yet.
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I don't want to put him on the spot and I want to get through this first and
then he's already got a copy of it and I'm going to ask him for written response so that
we're not tying things up 'cause we have a lot on our agenda, Ms. Baisa. But thank you
for asking.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Alright.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And we will get response. I just want you guys to tell me where you feel
uncertain on this so that we can hopefully, you know, tweak it out by the time we meet
next time with some other options. So we want a response.
The Director shall not verify the availability of water unless the applicant meets its
burden of identifying and proving a long-term, reliable supply of water with substantial
evidence pursuant to Section A. In assessing the availability of a long-term, reliable
supply of water, the Director shall consider the potential cumulative impacts of a
proposal prior to agency propu ... approval. A cumulative impact means the impact on
the environment and water supply that results from the incremental impact of the action
when added to other past, present, and reasonably foreseeable future actions regardless of
what agency or person undertakes such other actions. Cumulative impacts can result
from individually minor but collectively significant actions taking place over a period of
time.
I think this is so important because the way we've been operating we look at everything,
you know, as its own little individual action when in fact all these actions add up together.
And unless we look at it that way from the onset, we have no idea what the impacts are
going to be.
A long-term, reliable supply of water means the total water supplies available within a
20-year projection that will meet the projected demand associated with the proposed
development in addition to existing and planned future uses. I know there's been
questions on why we picked 20 years. Twenty years means that you've got a long-term,
reliable supply. It's not enough to say, you know, we're going to drill some wells and
they might turn brackish and they might not and we're not sure, you know, how long this
supply will last or what our options will be after, after the source runs dry. So in order to
be termed reliable and long-term, then, then we need to have at least a 20-year supply,
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and once they've got the 20-year supply, they've got a supply for life as long as we
protect it.
In determining long-term, reliable supply of water, all of the following factors shall be
considered: the state water commission's water resources protection plan - we went over
that just briefly. That plan has been in effect since at least 1990, I believe, and probably
has been updated some. The water use and development plan, the general plan and
relevant community plans. Members, we might want to change the water use and
development plan. We're going to have to do something with that because we don't
currently have a current water use and development plan. So some language in there to,
you know, as updated or something like that because we don't want to hold this up. They
... and then we don't want people to say that we don't have a current water use and
development plan so we can't use it as a resource. The general plan and relevant
community plans, and mind you, Members, the water use and development plan is
supposed to reflect the needs based on the community plans and the general plan. Any
potential cumulative impacts on surrounding aquifers and/or stream systems, including:
water levels, water quality including salinity, the discharge of water into springs and/or
nearshore marine areas, surface water-ground water interactions, and adverse impacts on
other existing wells.
You know, we know that, that surface water and ground water are in many instances
interrelated. So all of these criteria, the water levels and the water quality including the
salinity levels, these are all things that would, would ensure that the source is a long-term,
reliable source. And then of course, the impact on Department of Hawaiian Home Lands'
reservations or projected future uses. I think that we need to, you know, put a little bit
more emphasis on this ... on DHHL needs because they have priority. They have priority
according to the Constitution and they don't seem to be getting priority. I understand that
they're having problems getting some DHHL homes on the West side off the ground
because oflack of water. That water should have been reserved for them years ago.
Okay, (t) ... any questions, Members? Okay, (t), potential impacts on the water needs of
residents currently being served, and projected to be served, by the department. Excuse
me, Members, I'm sorry. When ... when I stop and ad-lib, then it makes it hard for me to
keep the flow going and I want us to realize that these criteria I'm reading off are criteria
to be considered in determining the long-term, reliable supply of water.
Okay, so we are on number (t), potential impacts on the water needs of residents
currently being served and projected to be served by the department. Potential impacts
projected to be served could be - and we need to ferret this out, too - does that mean
projected to be served based on community plan designations or projected to be served
based on water reservations that the department may be holding? We'll have to look into
that.
(G) Potential impacts on environmental resources that are rare or unique to the region and
the project site including natural, cultural, or human-made resources of historic,
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archaeological, or aesthetic significance; whether water use will affect discharge of fresh
and brackish water to the nearshore environment; potential impacts on the exercise of
traditional and customary Native Hawaiian rights and practices; impacts to fishing,
diving, hunting, and/or gathering of land and marine flora and fauna; and finally, impacts
to the community's ability to maintain Native Hawaiian religious and spiritual
relationship to the land or nearshore environment; and whether the applicant is in full
compliance and not in violation of the state water code and Maui County's water
reporting laws, including, but not limited to, any and all reports submitted to the state
water commission as required by Chapter 174C, HRS, and to the department as required
by Section 2.90A050. Members, you remember last year we passed a reporting
requirement. Some users still are not reporting their water use accurately.
A finding of a long-term, reliable supply of water shall not be made where the projected
demand associated with the proposed development would: (A) cause the affected water
source, including ground water, surface water, or other source of water to exceed: ninety
percent of the sustainable yield; in stream flow standard; interim in stream flow standard;
or other applicable standard of water source; or impact the water needs of residents
currently on a County waiting list for water meters - Ms. Baisa likes that COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Uh-huh.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I saw her grinning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: .. , (laughter) . ..
CHAIR ANDERSON: Or exceed the allocation of water set forth in the Maui County Code; or
impact the water quality of any water body identified as impaired under Section 303 of
the Clean Water Act. Section 303 addresses nearshore waters. Many of the nearshore
waters in Maui County today are on this impaired list and that means that actions need to
be taken to get these bodies of water off the impaired list. A finding of a long-term,
reliable supply of water shall not be made where the applicant is not in full compliance
with reporting laws, including Chapter 174 and Section 2.90A of this code or the
applicant's identification of a long-term, reliable supply of water for the proposed
development is not supported by substantial evidence pursuant to section 14.11.040.
Now substantial evidence, Members, we just went through the criteria. If they consider
all of those things, they should be able to give us substantial evidence and not just
promises on paper. I missed the ... where am I, Kim?
MS. WILLENBRINK: I think you're done.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I finished it.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
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VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Oh, good. We're done. How about that? Okay, so any questions from
the Members? Any specific sections before we take down the screen that you want to go
back to and look at?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Madam Chair?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Madam Chair, this would be listed under...
CHAIR ANDERSON: Just give us the page, Danny.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, four, on the top where it says i, ii, iii ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: .. , (chuckles) . ..
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Ai, yai, yai.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Ai, yai, yai, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Ai, yeah. That's the sentiment, yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yes. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. When you look at those things in terms of being criteria,
yeah, water levels - keep on going down, further down ...
MS. WILLENBRINK: Here?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right there.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. Water levels is something that you can... you can
actually see. You can do aver. .. you can do a visual on it. On water quality you can do a
test on it. The discharge of water that is ... because it's a discharge one can, can measure
and gauge the surface water-ground water interactions you can again virtually see the
interactions. But five, the adverse impacts on existing wells. That just seems like a lot
more complex criteria and that in itself could be time consuming to verify the fact that
there is adverse impact. So ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: And so what you're saying is how would they determine that adverse
impact in a timely way?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, I think part of it would be on the Water Resource Protection Plan.
That plan ... and I'll try, Members, to bring more of that. .. more information on that plan
forward because the whole idea of that plan is to prevent adverse impacts on existing
wells and water sources. And so in that plan it lays out where, you know, where new
wells could have an adverse impact on an existing source. But we will look into that
further and see if we can't give you more information on that because I don't have that
plan in front of me.
MR. ENG: Excuse me, Madam Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Eng, you have some ...
MR. ENG: Yes, and this is pertaining to Member Mateo's interest, and as you know, that we've
been working more and more with the USGS,-CHAIR ANDERSON: Right.
MR. ENG: --particularly with the Central Maui water systems, the West Maui Mountain aquifer,
and we're expanding their efforts to West Maui with the new contract.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right.
MR. ENG: And I've been in recent times very impressed with the results of their studies with
this three-D computer modeling and the Department is planning to utilize their efforts and
studies more and more. There's not many tools you can use to study the aquifer and
other... the impacts ... the long-term impacts to the aquifer based on either new source
development, which this is, or even what we're currently doing in our pumping practices.
So it's been very enlightening to me to see some of the work that they've been doing and
that will be a tool that we are going to be using and is probably, in regard to planning
ground water sources, the most significant tool we have available which I would like to
see if, if. .. for private water systems, or you know, those that are developed by
developers, actually even incorporate that as one of their criteria in ... such as on this
listing above there, (b) water use and development plan. You may even want to add
"and/or studies and conclusions of the US Geological Survey" because they have some
very relevant and valid information and it would probably address a lot of those other
items that you indicated under item (d). They do monitor. . .there are a couple of
monitoring wells that they're able to utilize data,-CHAIR ANDERSON: Right.
MR. ENG: --as well as salinity, and in fact, somehow I wish we could incorporate that, you
know, these developers or whoever's developing private water sources participate in the
funding of the USGS's work because right now it's only the County. And we can see that
their efforts are so valuable that we .. .I can foresee us particim ... participating financially
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more and more in the future and it would be appropriate for requiring others to also share
in those costs.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Director Eng. That's excellent suggestion. So we'll look at
incorporating that. I know that their ground water modeling wells - they only have three
on Maui so it mayor may not be close enough to help in, in whatever source we're
looking at, whatever new sources might be applied ... be applied to. But certainly, their
studies are very helpful and, and the modeling ... the ground water modeling study would
be applicable almost anywhere I think. So we'll look into that. Thank you for adding
that. So, Mr. Mateo,-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: We'll look into that. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, the first pass is good. I still have, you know, things I'd
like to hear about and I definitely would like to hear the Water Director's comments on
this plan. And I'm concerned about the time constraint and whether or not it's practical
what we're asking for, but on Page 4...
CHAIR ANDERSON: Wait, wait, wait, Ms. Baisa, what's the time constraint that you're
concerned about?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: How much time he has to, you know, find this, this project is
okay and has this 20-year reliable thing.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, but, you see, the applicant - the onus is on them to bring all the ...
(change tape, start 3A) . .. information to the Director.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And when we're processing applications for whatever it is - zoning,
community plan, even subdivisions, they have a time constraint that's already there.
They send their. .. the application around to the various departments, State and County,
and they have to reply in a given amount of time so that the applicant is not held up. And
usually what holds up the applicant nine times out of ten is that they didn't provide
adequate information to begin with. So the onus is on them. If they want, you know, to
get a speedy reply and a speedy evaluation, then we'll find out from the Director if he
thinks he can review this in 45 days.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, that, that was one of the things I was interested in - his
comments.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay, and then ...
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: On Page 4 (t), it says potential impacts on the water needs of
residents currently being served and are projected to be served by the department. What
concerns me about this is, you know, when we're looking at verifying or certifying a
long-term reliable source of water, I was thinking that maybe six years ago whoever the
Water Director was at that time, looking at the Pookela Well and thinking that he would
get 1liz million gallons of water per day, didn't see an impact on the current users and
those that would be served. And then six years later when the well comes on line, we're
told that, you know, 200 meters were issued in anticipation of this water coming on line
and then there's no water for the rest of the people that are being served. We're already,
you know, dealing with cutbacks and also we're being told that there will be no more
meters for the people on the list. So there's some educated guessing. I'm trying .. .I
don't know how else to say it and there will be some subjectivity. And so while we are
searching for a more finite solution, I think we need to be realistic about the fact that
there will be some room for educated guesstimating in this process still.
CHAIR ANDERSON: You know, I think one of the problems that we've had is that the Water
Use and Development Plan, which is really just a water budget besides all of the, you
know, ancillary studies and whatnot, finances and all that go into it, but if we had the
Water Use and Development Plan updated every time we add on a source or we take
more water out, then we would be able to know. Is there enough source left for the
projected needs of people that are on the wait list before we give out more to other
people? So, hopefully, this will help get around that until the Water Use and
Development Plan is done. But we will look into that I think maybe a better definition or
criteria to substantiate what the projected needs are. I appreciate that. We'll look at that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Anything else, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Madam Chair?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Following up with that question from Ms., Ms. Baisa-CHAIR ANDERSON: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --in terms of meeting the ... meeting the need. Just, just to
consider the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands and their current progressive push in
developing homes for their. .. for their beneficiaries, I don't think we even took a look at
the impact of what their total 1,500 homes will mean in terms of not only water
availability, but in also in terms of where the water coming from, how soon the meters
can be provided based on their right to water. So I think in just this very short term or
this short window that we have before their plans are finalized and initiation of the
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project I think we're already at a lost. So the Department has more than its work cut out
in just identifying that one need.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And you're speaking, Mr. Mateo, of the West side or Up country?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I, I. .. this is part ... this is in part a total part of a bigger plan the State plan - and for us it is cumulative because Hawaiian Homes is looking at a real
ambitious project Statewide of which Maui's ... Maui's plans are considerable.
CHAIR ANDERSON:
Statewide?

So the 1,500 homes aren't on Maui.

You mean that's the 1,500

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Fifteen hundred homes is Maui Island.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Maui Island. Okay, great. Yeah, you're right on that. They are the first
beneficiaries.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Members, any other questions? Comments?
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Madam, Madam Chair?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: One, one of the areas and I, I don't. .. maybe it's somewhere in
here and I'm just not picking up on it, but I, I don't see where (a) agriculture and (b)
diversion ... the existing diversion systems that are existing out there today, where would
that play in there because that is such a big part of this whole equation that we don't. . .if
we don't spell it out, I don't want it being sidetracked and put off to the wayside. Now
inflow streams restorations, that's one issue, but there's a lot of water that has and
continues to be diverted for agriculture or "agriculture", and I don't want that lost in this
equation or in this whole update but I'm not sure where you wanted to put it. And maybe
I'm just missing it and I apologize if I. ..
CHAIR ANDERSON: No, no, no, no. No apology. So what you're saying is that the term ditch
water is not in there?
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, ditch water and, and ... because that's considered surface
water-CHAIR ANDERSON: Right.
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: --but it's being diverted before it even gets into "the surface water
system".
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Right.
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: How do we ensure that, that is put as part of the ... part of the
plan? We don't want to leave that out.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right. Well, all we have to go by legally right now are the established
interim in stream flow standards, but you, you know that we have petitions for all the Na
Wai Eha streams for their in stream flow standards to be established according to the
beneficial uses. Right now the in stream standards that the State adopted Statewide for all
the streams because they didn't have the time or the money, so they say, to go out and do
all the studies that are necessary to make sure that the instream standards are set
according to beneficial uses, what they did is when they had to establish this according to
the Water Code, they just took what was being used at the time and adopted it as interim
in stream standards. And in many instances that means no water at all in the stream
because it's all being diverted.
Currently, we have a petition and, and the USGS studies have been done and thank you to
Na Wai Eha, to Earthjustice, to OHA, and to the County of Maui for putting the money
out there to get the USGS studies done. So those in stream flow standards will be
established for those streams. And you're right, it may be that some of that water that is
being diverted for "ag uses" all these years is going to be put back into the stream and
some of it's going to flow to the ocean, some of it's going to taro farmers, some of it's
going for municipal uses, and that's why we're using the term interim in stream flow
standards. And well, there's two standards - the in stream flow standards or interim
in stream flow standards.
The same is being done with the East Maui streams. There... Members, there are
petitions for 27 East Maui streams for the in stream, in stream standards to be set for 27
East Maui streams and the petitions were filed in July of2001. And until those standards
are established - we're getting a little off track, but I think this is important - the County
of Maui cannot go forward with developing any wells in that East Maui zone because
years ago when they did a. . . an EIS for the East Maui - what did they call it,
development project, East Maui Water Development Project - that EIS was challenged in
court for being inadequate. And one of the settlement stipulations was that the in stream
flow standards be established because many people over there, not only do the taro
farmers want more water for their loi, but many, many feel that the recharge is affected
by the diversion and it's true. If you don't have water in the streams, the streams
recharge the groundwater. So when you're diverting it all, you're, you're taking away
that recharge capability. So I understand your question but it's not our purview or our
jurisdiction to set those standards and to say to EMI or to Wailuku Water Company, you
know, you got to give us back the water.
There's a legal procedure that's being taken up by, you know, I think the next step, in
fact, there's even one .. .I think there is already one petition for the West side, but so far
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we've got petitions for instream standards on the four streams on this side of Mana
Kahalewai and all of East Maui 27 streams. So the reason I, you know, in this, in this
PowerPoint, the reason I made the comment or let you see the comment that was made in
the Supreme Court decision about how the Commission views their job. Remember, the
Supreme Court overturned the Commission's decision. It was the Commission that was
in error and the Commission are the people we're depending on to get these in stream
standards set and it's in a contested case legal procedure. But I just want to reiterwait
[sic]. .. reiterate, excuse me, what the Supreme Court said, "We have rejected the idea of
public streams serving as convenient reservoirs for private offstream use." So that's the
best we can do. I don't know that we can. . . does that address your question,
Mr. Victorino?
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: I, I think to a point. I, I guess my, my ... the crux of my question
was, as these big corporations downsized agriculture and the water that has been
committed to them for the purpose of agriculture could then be changed to say, oh, we're
not going to use these hundreds and thousand gallons of water for sugar cane anymore
but we're going to put housing there and I'm going to take that water and use it for that.
So would this address that because in the future, I understand what you're saying, but I
want to make sure that we have and future Councils has the right to say, okay, you're
going to take land out of agriculture because it's not feasible anymore, and we've seen
that with the closing of our cannery and all these other things. If that occurs, I don't want
that water to all of a sudden just go to a private development because I've used the water,
now I'm going to build housing, I can use it.
CHAIR ANDERSON: You mean as in the case of Wailuku Water Company?
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, I didn't go into any specific spot, you know.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, let's be specific-VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, you know ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: --because we're dealing with reality. Come on.
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: I mean, again, I'm just making sure that that does not occur in the
future.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And that's what we're trying to establish-VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: --with the in stream and interim stream criteria here.
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, just so long as that is being addressed and then I'm
comfortable with that. Thank you.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mike. Members, any other pertinent questions right now
because I'd like to move on to the agenda. This was a good introduction. We got it out
there. We've got some questions on the table. We're going to give the Water Director a
chance to respond in writing and, and if there's any other questions that anybody has
before we move on, if you've got any amendments that you might want to make, please
let us know and we'll certainly put it up next time we meet. Okay, Members, are you all
comfortable? I'd like to defer this item until our next meeting.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. So, Members, the next thing ... thank you all for your attention on
that. It's a lot to swallow but I think it is a movement in the right direction. No matter,
you know, who has jurisdiction. No matter if it is the State of Hawaii under the State
Water Code, the State Water Resource Commission, the large landowners who have had
150 years of water diversion, doesn't matter. It's our islands. It's our community. It's
our people. It's our people's water. So we got to step to the plate. Enough waiting
around. You know, the State Water Code was adopted in 1974? Oh, I got that wrong,
1987 ... 1987, Members. These mandates have been in place and we're still waiting. So I
think we've waited long enough. The next item on our agenda is Water Supply Rules.
ITEM NO. 1

WATER SUPPLY RULES (e.c. No. 05-46)

CHAIR ANDERSON: We're going to briefly talk about the drought. Members, if you'll go to
Item WR-l in your first binder, the Water Rules, and you know, I really apologize. I'm
going to have Staff. .. Kim, please make a note - take these Water Rules out and maybe
put them in its own little binder because these rules ... this is all we got on Water Rules
and then Mr. Kushi gave us a codified section which is now this big and it's kind of hard
to find, Members. It's in your binder about here. .., (chuckles) . ..
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: The middle, okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And the date on the memo is October 11, '06.
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And as we are going to be spending a lot of time the rest of this year on
these rules I think what we'll do is we'll take them out and we'll put them in their own
little tiny binder,-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: --okay, so they're easy to find. And we're going to be breaking them
down, too, so it'll make it easier to handle.
So you want to go to section, in the Water Rules, 14.06, Chapter 14.06. We also got a
handout today. Chair Hokama's been thinking the same as I 'cause he's done a bill pretty
much the same as mine. And basically, the, the current regulation, Members, ... have you
found it 14.06?
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: Is that Page 42?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mike. Page 42, Members. The current declaration for
drought. .. the Board had the authority to declare a drought dec ... declaration and there
are various criteria that they used that are not actually in this rule. I think that maybe we
might want to incorporate. Now, mind you, when I use the term rule, I should actually be
using the word policy because that's what we deal with. But we're looking at the rules
and some of these rules are really policy issues so if I use the term rule, I'm using it
loosely only because that's what it says currently, but we will be changing that. It will be
a drought policy that this Council adopts. And the only change that we're looking at is to
make that authority to lie with the Council and I'm thinking that we need to have also
have emergency powers for the Director and the Mayor. They don't have time to come
to the Council, they need to have that emergency power, which is basically what
happened recently. But in the long term, in the scheme of things, I think what we need to
do is we need to look at triggers. I mean in the past they had triggers. In other words,
you, you have ... first you have a drought warning, then you have a drought emergency,
and, and there are certain things that trigger each one of those, and then you have
cutbacks.
So for all of those sections ... Mr. Kushi, could you tell me, I'm looking at the ... there
was a resolution that the Board adopted in '98 establishing guidelines for declaring a
drought and my recollection is that I think last time this came up with H'poko when we
talked about this a year or so ago, I think you said that that resolution was overridden or
that they don't use it anymore. And basically, what it does is it says, you know, the
average daily inflow is less than the system demand and these are triggers. The raw
water reservoir levels are 20 million gallons ... are less than 20 million gallons at Lower
Kuler. .. Kula or 55 million gallons at Upper Kula. Another trigger is that total EMI
Maliko ditch flows are less than 55 million gallons a day or the Wailoa Ditch is less than
30 million gallons a day. I'm just reading this off so you get an idea of what the various
triggers were. Now I don't know that they're still applicable now. They may be or they
may not be because this was done in '98. But I'm thinking that maybe we should look at
some of these guidelines to set so that it never becomes an emergency. That we have a
warning way in advance of when something might trigger a drought warning or a drought
emergency.
As you might have seen. . .I think this was just handed out at the beginning of the
meeting so it's not in your binders, Members. It's a memo to this Committee from Riki
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Hokama, June 29. It actually has holes in it so it can go in your binder, but I'm pretty
sure - Clarita, it didn't get in the binders, right?
MS. BALALA: No.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So it should be on your, on your desktops, Members, just a two-page
memo. And basically what it is is the Chapter 14.06 as it currently reads in this draft bill
and the changes that Mr. Hokama made are under. .. well, I'll just read it. Section A and
I'm not going to read this whole bill, Members, because I'm just trying to get your input
so we can move on this. I want to finish up a few other things on the agenda. Currently,
there's no authority declaring a drought except the Director and the Mayor. The way this
reads is that if at any time when the water supply becomes inadequate in any area of the
County because of a period of drought, the Director of Water Supply after consultation
with the Board of Water Supply and with Council's approval by resolution, may declare a
drought to exist in such area. So, basically, the only change in any of this is to get the
Council's approval by resolution. And what that does, Members, is that brings the issue
forward hopefully in plenty of enough time that the Council can respond if we have a,
you know, if we have some options. It also brings it out into the public domain so that
the public can be a part of it and it also requires the Department to justify with these
various triggers why a drought is necessitated - and is it just lack of rainfall, is there a
problem with the ditch system, is there a problem with the well, is there a problem with
the pump? We need to know all that and I think the consumer deserves to know it, too.
So does anybody have any objections to the Council being involved in the drought
declaration? That's the main reason I'm bringing this up. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. I don't have any objections just, just that if,
if we're going to go into a drought season, then we have plenty of time to work with the
Department in regards to our resolution because I hate for us to be delaying, you know,
such an information to the public because it's very critical that we all understand that
there is a drought being proposed by the Water Department. So that's my only concern.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, and you know, a drought isn't something that just happens
overnight. It creeps up on you and, and so what I'm trying ... what I'd like to do is bring
back to you at our next meeting some realistic triggers - work with the Department also.
So that. .. because some of these levels may not be accurate now because ofPookela and
they may change in the future, too, with this new proposed Piiholo Well. But at least we
have some triggers in place so that we will know way before we have to declare the
drought and that gives them time to come to the Council to put it all out on the table.
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. I share Councilmember Pontanilla's concern.
It's not that I object to the Council being involved but I don't want us to be part of the
problem. I want us to be part of moving things along. You know, as a person who lives
Up country, I've been kind of dismayed that the Council really has not addressed our
drought situation up until now. The other thing I wanted to mention was we were at a
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meeting the other day, many of us, on the water crisis and it was mentioned, and I'm
wondering if it can be part of this discussion that there was a possibility that water that is
available from the Hamakuapoko Wells could be mixed in with water that's available not
for drinking but for other uses and that water... that amount of water that, you know,
could be used Upcountry. And it was said that something could be done and I'm
wondering whose job it is to follow up on that so we have more water Upcountry?
CHAIR ANDERSON: I think Director Eng is looking into that so if you'd like to respond.
MR. ENG: Certainly. Thank you. I have a meeting tomorrow morning with Corp. Counsel to
discuss that notion of utilizing the H'poko Wells and that would be more of a water
exchange with EMIIHC&S. So we could, we could pump with them. It's pretty
expensive ag water but we can pump them, and hopefully, with assurances that we could
take more water. Now, right now we're in a pretty good situation with Wailoa Ditch but
as it gets more and more critical if that option is open and the main thing is that there is
this settlement agreement with the chemical manufacturer defendants and I want to make
sure that we're not in violation of that agreement should we decide to operate the wells.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I thank you and my dying yard and roses thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: You know, I think. . .I think I looked into that settlement agreement
when we were discussing H'poko as to whether or not it would be a violation of that
agreement and I don't think there's anything in that agreement that says the water has to
be for potable use. I think it's just municipal use so I think we're okay. So that's where
I'm going with this as far as getting the ... getting the triggers more up-to-date so that
we've got something to work on. I don't know that that would be something that we
would want to put in into the County Code because it would be something that probably
would have to be variable, but we could reference it in the Code.
I also want to bring to your attention, Members, that October 2004, Wilson Okamoto
Engineering prepared a drought mitigation strategy for the County of Maui and there's
also a drought plan for the State of Hawaii that's this thick. And I'm currently reviewing
both of them seeing if there's, you know, where we are with these mitigation strategies
and where the funding is. There's no reason for us to not have any solutions to the
Up country drought that comes every year as sure as the sun shines and there are
mitigation measures. One being the dual line and that's something else off topic that I
meant to mention this morning. Part of the Hawaii State Water Plan is an agriculture
water plan that delineates and describes the irrigation needs on all three islands and how
to meet the agriculture irrigation needs. And the Department of Agriculture has been
charged with that plan and I think they finished that also. So down the road we'll be
looking at that also, Members, but it didn't. . .it doesn't really, really fall in line with
what we were discussing this morning. But I wanted you to know that it does exist.
If maybe the .. .if Members have no other questions about this drought bill, I'd like to go
and spend a few minutes more in regards to the situation currently at hand so that
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members of the public are up-to-date as we are in regards to the Kaupakalua Well. When
will that be online and will that. .. how much water will that put back into the system?
And anything else you want to talk about drought now is your chance, Director Eng.
MR. ENG: Okay, as I earlier referenced, the Kaupakalua Well is undergoing repair and its repair
is just about completed. I think it will be shipped out of the factory in Texas I believe
this week. .. , (change tape, start 3B). .. It will be trucked to Los Angeles and we've
made arrangements to have it flown to Honolulu, whereby it is then transported to Young
Brothers, and then it will end up on Maui and hopefully with the coordination with the
contractor who will reinstall it. I'm, I'm kind of targeting like a July 27 or 28 start up
date to bring it back online.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Could we just stop right there? That well has been down April, May,
June, July ... July 28. April, May, June, July, that's four months. Why did that happen?
Why don't we have a backup pump or parts? Or why should we be four months,
especially in the critical months, without a pump for a well?
MR. ENG: Yeah. That's something that a lot of water utilities have to struggle with, whether to
have a spare motor of that size on a shelf for emergencies, and because you never know,
it's probably a pretty unique size. I think that's a 1,400-foot depth well so it's a pretty
substantial horsepower. There's a couple of issues. You generally don't just store one
because you may not use it for years and when you store a motor on the shelf, particularly
in our climate, you know, it could deteriorate. So, and another thing that compounds it is
that even the factories themselves if you're buying a new motor, in this case it's a pump,
that kind of basically through wear and tear and some of the bearings wore out, it just
takes time to repair it. Now four months sounds like a long period of time. I've
experienced six, and eight, and nine months of a well going down.
CHAIR ANDERSON: How much water does that give us in gallons a day?
MR. ENG: I think we had been pumping around 800,000-CHAIR ANDERSON: Eight hundred thousand.
MR. ENG: --gallons per day because it basically serves the Haiku area. So it's meeting the
demand down there. And so yeah, we're looking forward to it. It's going to be big
because we know the drought's only going to be getting worse. Some three or four
weeks from now will be a really critical time to get that back on online.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Excellent. And so, you know, you only got the Pookela Well up and
running in May. So June you were getting a full 1. 3 million gallons a day out of it?
MR. ENG: Uh-huh. That's correct.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So we can't see that giving us any relief?
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MR. ENG: No. No, the drought has as you read and we understand that, you know, we're
fortunate Up country. We had a little bit of precipitation starting like Thursday or so.
And it's really lucky because the Kahakapao Reservoir is really the most critical area for
us because it really relies on inflow from Waikamoi areas. And when we first were
evaluating the need to declare a drought, the Waikamoi Reservoir which total 30 million
gallons were already dried up back in . . . before the first of May. So we had the
Kahakapao Reservoir at 40 ... 100 million gallons. That was around May 1. At the time
we declared the drought, which was around - I forget the day exactly - around June 12 or
so, June 13, it was really critical. It was dropping at about two million gallons per day
just to meet the demand that the ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: Can we just. .. excuse me, Director, can I just stop you right there? The
Kahakapao Reservoir gets it's water from the Waikamoi Reservoir.
MR. ENG: Uh-huh.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And that source, the Waikamoi Reservoir, its source water is from East
Maui, Hana side, and it's my understanding they're not having a drought. So how .. .is
there a problem with the ditch system? Did the ditch go down or?
MR. ENG: No. Actually, that particular Upper Kula system its source doesn't extend all the
way to Hana.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Hana.
MR. ENG: It's .. .I don't know how many miles in from the Olinda Plant, but I would say it's
more within I'd say seven or eight miles toward the east. So it intakes. . .its intakes do
not go that far.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I see.
MR. ENG: And the real high elevation and so it looks like ... even though we saw some clouds
over East Maui, they weren't really high enough so it just wasn't getting any rain. So
that was our biggest concern. That's why we acted ... we acted as quickly as we could to
declare the drought. We didn't want the reservoirs to dry out obviously. You know, I
felt that we could have even declared it a week earlier and we would have except that I
was requested to take this before the Board and that took another week to, to schedule
that meeting. But I. . .I know that we have to react quickly and that's why with this
proposal before us or before you folks regarding declaration of the drought is just
something for everyone to consider is, you know, time would be of the essence. Now we
can monitor from early in the winter whether there is rain or not and we kind of already,
you know, kind of expected this as being a difficult summer. And for us to even declare
a drought warning in March is unusually early but I'm certainly glad we did. Because
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given the situation right now it's. . .it's going to be a real, real big challenge to make it
through the summer without going to the next level of drought emergencies.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. Members, any questions? Okay. On our next
meeting we'll bring back some guidelines. I want to talk this over with Mr. Kushi and
see what vehicle we can use because I do think we need to have some guidelines, some
triggers, so that when we meet those triggers, the drought warning, yeah, can come up
sooner than later so we're prepared. Okay, Members, I'm sorry we're going to run over
just a little bit because I think it's important to bring a couple things to your attention.
WR-16 ... so WR-l we're going to defer. Oh, also I am looking at, you know, currently
for agricultural rate ... water rate you have to be on ag zoned property. I think all of you
were aware ofMr. Rice's concern. He brought that to our concern ... our attention. And
he's got a viable farm on rural zoned land and he wanted to get ag rates. But currently,
the, the Department's rules say that you have to be zoned agriculture. Under the
definitions and I don't know, Mr. Kushi, if you can find this for me. I wasn't able to find
it yesterday. I did find the definition. Agricultural water consumer means those
consumers actively engaged in crop productions, stock raising, or dairy farming to derive
farm income on County zoned or State designated agricultural lands. That looks like a
brand new definition. Did you just write that or did you take it from somewhere in the
body of the rules?
MR. KUSHI: Madam Chair, are you referring to the rules that is attached to the October 11th
memo?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yes.
MR. KUSHI: Is there a page number on there?
CHAIR ANDERSON: I'm just looking at the definition section of the draft that has ... on Page 2
it has agricultural water consumers defined and that's really the only place I could find it.
But then I didn't, you know, I tried a word search and I couldn't find it anywhere else so
I must not have had the right word but. . .
MR. KUSHI: Madam Chair, that's correct. The definition came right out of the existing
Chapter 7 of the Rules of the Department.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And is that in ... Chapter 7, is that in our current draft?
MR. KUSHI: No. It's one of the chapters lowe you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Oh, no wonder I couldn't find it. Okay, and, and when are you going to
pay up?
MR. KUSHI: As soon as we get over this drought ordinance I guess.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Come on, Mr. Kushi, you've been working on these last two chapters
since last year. Did you put it on the side or I mean they're the two most important
chapters as far as I. .. not. . .I mean they are two very relevant chapters. One charges for
water service, the other water system development fee.
MR. KUSHI: Madam Chair, I will try my best to get it before your next meeting.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you very much, Mr. Kushi.
MR. ENG: Excuse me, Madam Chair, if I may add something? I know this body early in the
year tried and made attempts to address this agriculture definition. I would like to appeal
to this body to continue to pursue a good working definition, not just for our Department,
but also for the Real Property Tax Division, you know, so we're consistent. You know,
we get and address what we're really trying to focus on is that that is supporting
legitimate farming, eliminating the fake farms, and ... but also keep in mind is that while
we support ag and farming we do have revenue, revenue requirements in the Department
in which the regular rate payers are subsidizing ago So we can't have everyone going ag
and qualifying for ag rates. Just, please, keep that in mind.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I understand. Before we make any drastic measures we will do some due
diligence. We don't want to undermine your ability to bring in revenues, but at the same
time, we certainly want to encourage ag and we certainly want to make that viable and
you can't make that viable unless the cost of water is economical. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. Question for the Director. It's a matter of
public record or I wouldn't ask but I saw in the Water Board meeting agenda that
Mr. Rice was making an appeal. How did that go?
MR. ENG: Member Baisa, prior to the meeting, Mayor Tavares asked me to meet with her to
discuss this particular issue because she was very familiar with it. And she ... we sat
down and she asked the Department to take another look at his particular situation
because he had a very compelling situation, as you know. And so we took another close
look at it and we granted him the agricultural water rates.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I appreciate that a lot.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And I'm sure Mr. Rice does but that doesn't. ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, it doesn't.
CHAIR ANDERSON: It doesn't alleviate the problem. I think that the Director under his
current rules has the right of discretion, but the rules currently state you don't get ag rates
unless you're on ag zoned property and we have plenty of real property that has
agriculture use. So we need to look in .. .into changing it. I think, you know, I know the
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Director wants to do this on a case-by-case basis, yeah, but Mr. Rice had his property
inspected and it was obvious. I mean photographs make it obvious that it's a producing
farm. In fact, I'm going to give a plug for Mr. Rice. You know what he's doing?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: He's producing ... he's producing food for the Food Bank.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Right.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And if we can't give him ag rates, then I don't know what.
So I know we're coming down to the tail end here, Members, and I'm sor. .. sorry that I
overbooked us, but you know, we got to get these things out on the table and it's been too
many months since we've met.
So the other thing I wanted to bring up ... the agreement that the previous Administration
under WR-16, Members, you'll find it in your binder.
ITEM NO. 16

DEVELOPMENT OF NEW SOURCES OF WATER (e.c. No. 05-319)

CHAIR ANDERSON: This is the Piiholo Agreement. This is an agreement between the
Department of Water Supply and Maui Land and Pineapple Company to drill a well in
the Piiholo area, which would .. .I'm just going to give it a thumbnail here on this, which
would hopefully produce two million gallons a day, a well whose estimated capacity
would be two million gallons a day. But then, of course, system standards say you only
use 45 percent of what the well can produce and of that 45 percent Maui Land and Pine
would get 75 percent of it, giving the County 25 percent of the 45 percent. I don't. . .I
don't see this as a fair divvy and I did bring this to the Director's attention and he said,
well, yeah, but if, that's staying at system standards.
I don't think we should lower our standards, but you know, he says all the wells are
pumped greater than 45 percent. But then what happens is that they drill the well, they
put in a transmission line, the County takes over the operation and management of the
system, the well and the transmission line, we pay them back 50 percent of the cost of the
transmission line, not the wells, and they get to reserve source capacity for specific
TMKs that they have outlined in their agreement. Now, if I was a resident living
Up country and I've been on the waiting list for many years, I'd be a little upset about
this. And I'm upset even not being on the list because I don't think it's equitable. I don't
think it's fair that those people who have the money get to jump the line. I think we
should be drilling the well. We should get 100 percent of the water and then we should
divvy it out.
But nonetheless, the agreement was signed and sealed and I don't mind adding four days,
Members, before we pass in second and final reading, November 20, 2006, a bill that we
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require all agreements like this to come to the Council for approval. So not only was it
four days before our second and final reading, but it was a month and a half - it was after
the election - a month and a half before the previous Mayor was to vacate the office. So
that's the story. And I think it's important to get it out on the table for people to realize
what's, you know, the public resource should be under the control of the public entity
whose job it is to look out for the public. So, you know, how much is this well going to
cost to drill, Director Eng? Couple million dollars?
MR. ENG: I would say roughly the entire construction and design would be at least. .. and
control tank probably in the order of $3 million.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Uh-huh. Well, I don't think we're paupers. I think we can afford $3
million if it's going to mean 675 million gallons a day to our constituents. So, Members,
I'm bringing that to your attention because I think. . .I was hoping we'd have more time
to discuss it.
The one last thing I wanted to bring up - does anyone want to make a mention on the ...
of this agreement. I'm just trying to get finished with the agenda as fast as I can. But
now you've got the agreement and it's out in the public domain. Ms. Baisa, I know you
mentioned it earlier.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah, I mentioned it earlier and thank you for following up on it.
But I think the lesson learned is we need to invest. .. the County needs to invest our own
money in building our own wells so that we have control of the water.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you. Totally agree.
The one last thing I want to bring to your attention, Members, WR-4.
ITEM NO. 4

WATER USE AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN (e.c. No. 05-38)

CHAIR ANDERSON: The reason I bring this to your attention I think it's another timely thing.
There is an infrastructure assessment update that was prepared by Wilson Okamoto.
They make a lot of money off the County, ... (chuckles) . .. but they do good work. They
have done a infrastructure assessment update on drainage, water, and sewer, and that's
what's being used for the General Plan Update so that the planners in the Planning
Department and all of those folks that are putting in all that hard work on our update of
the General Plan have, you know, some factual information with which to make their
future plans. And the assessment is to say this is what your infrastructure is now, this is
what you're going to need in 2010, in 2020, based on your projections, and this is what
it's going to take to meet those infrastructure needs, not only in actual projects, but the
cost. .. estimated cost.
So there's one done for water. Lo and behold. It's like a mini Water Use and
Development Plan. I wanted to bring this to your attention. I brought it to the attention
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to the Director last week. Of course, he's new on the job so he didn't know that this
existed. But I'd like to know how much in concert this assessment is with reality with the
direction our Water Use and Development plan is going. And on that note since we're on
the Water Use and Development plan, Mr. Carl Freedman just received an update on his
contract. Director Eng worked very hard to get staff to get things that were going to lapse
as of June 30th and one was the 150,000 - was it 150,000? - 250,000 that the Council had
allocated last year to accelerate getting the Water Use and Development Plan completed.
So that's been done and then I also was wondering if you could give us, I'm kind of
skipping around here, but I'm trying to go quick. Give us a brief update, Director Eng,
on ... so we're going to have Mr. Freedman who's the consultant on the Water Use and
Development Plan come and talk to us and maybe have him look at this and see how, you
know, accurate this might be. We don't want to be planning using false hope. If. ..
maybe we could get a brief update on the contract that's to go out to Dr. Thomas for
exploration of the deep well Up country which could solve our drought problem like that.
MR. ENG: Okay. Well, as you know, Mr. Freedman's contract was encumbered just in the nick
of time and I'm really relieved that we were able to do that. And I'm looking forward to
his efforts and his periodic updates that he would provide this body. And I think that's
probably what's been lacking all this time, too, is what I find in talking to different
people is everyone has a little different idea of what this Water Use and Development
Plan is and Mr. Freedman will have that opportunity to educate us on that.
As far as Dr. Thomas' plan, now that was in a CIP funding in which we're close to .. .I
don't believe we have actually finalized that contract yet. He is still working with our
Planning Division on that. There were a few things that we needed clarification. When I
spoke to him a month or so ago, he had some lump sum expenses, charges to us and I had
asked him to break it up ... break it out so we know, you know, what aspect of the work
and how much it will cost. So I believe he did that. I think the, the execution of that is, is
soon to be achieved. So that would be nice to get that going also.
Just to keep. . .let you folks is that, again, his project is not drilling or doing any
exploratory drilling. It's solely for basically site identification purposes. Looking at
some of the U.S. Geological Survey's data, our data, looking at some environmental
issues, other public impacts. So again, I just wanted you to have clarification of your
expectations. The drill is not going to be hitting the ground in this particular phase of this
project.
CHAIR ANDERSON: No. We realize that. We funded it. It's to see if it's even feasible to
drill to find a site and do the geological studies to see if it's feasible. And there was one
other contract, Director Eng, that you got finished up in the nick of time.
MR. ENG: They all just got finished up in the nick of time.
CHAIR ANDERSON: The one ... the one that we were ...
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MR. ENG: I think Mr. Kushi would know better than 1. We had one perhaps just last minute
one we wanted to execute and that was with the USGS to expand their efforts in West
Maui doing a hydrological survey both of the surface and aquifer because there's a lot of
information lacking out there and that's a really problematic aquifer. There's certain
limitations to it and so I was really happy that they came and it's kind of last minute but I
think we were able to get that thing executed and encumbered.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. So thank you very much. I know you took a lot of effort to get
those contracts done and we really appreciate it. Members, any comments? Okay. With
no objections we're going to defer all items on our agenda.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER ALL ITEMS PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

CHAIR ANDERSON: And this afternoon, Budget and Finance with Mr. Pontanilla so we have
a meeting at 1:00.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: 1:30.
VICE-CHAIR VICTORINO: 1:30.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I mean 1:30 so I think we'd better go have some lunch. We're going to
skip announcements unless somebody has something burning they need to add. I, I
thank. . . I thank you for letting me take up some of your lunch time, Members, to get
through the agenda. I think the public was well informed today. Okay. Thank you all.
Thank you to the Staff. Thank you, Director Eng. The meeting of July 2nd is now
adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

12:20 p.m.

ERSON, Chair
Water Resources Committee
Transcribed by: Clarita Balala
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